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Corporate Profile and Directory

Registered Office
Doulatdiar, Uzirpur, Chuadanga

Corporate Office
South Avenue Tower (6th Floor), House # 50, Road # 3, 7, Gulshan Avenue, Dhaka-1212, Bangladesh
Tel : 02-222260264, 02-222260458, 02-222262803

Location of Factory
Uzirpur, Chuadanga and Koltapara Bazar. Gouripur, Mymensingh

Year of Incorporation
1985

Year of Business Commencement
1985
Commercial Production
Unit-1 :July, 1989,Unit-11 :July, 1998

Project Land
Chuadanga Site : 9.04 Acres, Mymensingh Site : 8.93 Acres

Productoin Activity

Manufacturer of Combed and Carded Cotton Yarn, Spun & O.E.

Product Mix
10s/1, 16s /1, 20s/1, 24s/1, 26s/1, 30s/1, 32s/1, 40s/1, 54s/1, 60s/1, 62s/1, 80s/1

Capacity
Existing : 61608 Spindles & 896 Rotors (O.E.)

Authorised Capital
Tk. 2,000,000,000

Paid up Capital
Tk. 893,353,750

Legal Form of the Company
Public Limited Company

Listing Status

Listed with Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. in Feb, 1990
Listed with Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd. in June,2001

No of Shareholders
9275 (As on June 30, 2019)

Distribution channel
Through Direct Marketing for Local & Export.
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Corporate Profile And Directory

No. of Employment
Total Number of Employee-731
Market
Local & Export.
Origin of Machinery
Japan, U.K, Switzerland, USA, Germany, China, Czeck Republic, India.
No. of Auto-Coners
Existing 14 Units in Operation

Raw Materials
Raw Cotton From U.S.A, Australia, Sudan, W. Africa, C.1.S, India etc.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Md. Rafiqul Haque Chairman

Mr. Md. Atiqul Haque Managing Director

Mrs. Rabeya Khatun Director

Mr. Md. Mahbub-Ul Haque Director

Mr. Md. Shofiqul Islam Director (BDBL Nominated)
Mr. Md. Abu Saleh Independent Director

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Md. Abu Saleh Independent Director- Chairman
Mr. Md. Atiqul Haque Managing Director - Member
Mr. Md. Mahbub-Ul Haque Director - Member

Nomination And Remunaration Committee

Mr. Md. Abdul Allam Independent Director- Chairman
Mr. Md. Atiqul Haque Managing Director - Member
Mr. Md. Mahbub-Ul Haque Director - Member

Auditors

M/s. Ashraf Uddin & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Rahman Chamber, 12-13, Motijheel
C/A, Dhaka-1000

Bankers
Bangladesh Development Bank Ltd.,Head Office,8 Rajuk Avenue, Dhaka
Export Import Bank of Bangladesh Ltd.
Motijheel Branch, Sharif Mansion, 56-57, Motijheel C/A, Dhaka

Bank of Small Industries & Commerce Bangladesh Ltd.
Shantinagar Branch,169/1, Shantinagar, Dhaka.
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Board of Directors

Md. Rafiqul Haque
Chairman

Educational Qualification
M.S.S from University of Dhaka

Professional Experience
38 Years experience in Manufacturing
and Trading business

Md. Atiqul Haque
Managing Director

Educational Qualification
M. Com, Finance & Banking, University of Dhaka

Professional Experience
32 Years experience in Manufacturing
and Trading business
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Board of Directors

Rabeya Khatun
Director

Educational Qualification
Bachelor of Arts

Professional Experience

36 Years experience in Manufacturing
and Trading business

Md. Mahbub-UI Hague
Director

Educational Qualification

M. Corn, Finance & Banking, University of Dhaka
M.B.A from United Kingdom

Ph.d from Washington Internationl University, USA

Professional Experience
33 Years experience in Manufacturing
and Trading business
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Board of Directors

Mr. Md. Shafiqul Islam
Director (Nominated by BDBL)

Educational Qualification
M.Com (Accounting)
University of Dhaka

Professional Experience
30 Years experience as Banker

Mr. Md. Abu Saleh
Independent Director

Educational Qualification

M. Com (Finance) University of Dhaka

Diplomat Associate of Institute of Banker Bangladesh

Institute of Banker Bangladesh

Cost and Management Accounts (Intermediate)

The Institute of Cost and Management Accountants of Bangladesh

Professional Experience
30 Years experience as Banker and Top Management
Position in Different Companies including Listed Companya
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TRANSMITTAL LETTER

The Shareholders

Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission
Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd.

Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd.

Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms

Subject: Annual Report for the year ended 30th June, 2020.

Dear Sir(s) ,

We are pleased to enclose a copy of the Annual Report together with the Audited Accounts including
Statement of Financial Position as at 30th June, 2020, Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income, Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statements for the year ended on 30th
June, 2020 along with notes thereon and all related Financial Statements for your record/necessary
measures.

Yours faithfully,

<

Mohammad Zaman, ACS, LL.M
Company Secretary
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Qur Philosophy

Business is
and always has been a
dynamic and diversification process. We
strive to be at the fore front of change in fashion
and terend setting while in continuous pursuit of
quality and commitments through total customer focus in
all operational areas.

Products to be of best available quality. products for premium
market segments integrated diversification/product range expansion.

Care for value of money.

Faith in individual potential and respect for human values.

Encouraging innovation for constant improvements to achieve excellence in
all functional areas.

quality product

Striving for technological development and research  for
and better packaging.

Accepting changes as a way of life

Strict adherence to financial and administrative principles.

That is why we have based our production &
marketing philosophy on three basic

principles- Stability, Quality and

Efficiency.
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Toyo Spinning Mills Limited
Corporate Office: South Avenue Tower (6™ Floor), House # 50, Road # 03, 07
Gulshan Avenue, Dhaka — 1212.

NOTICE OF THE 31™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM)

Notice is hereby given that we received an order (Company Matter No. 200 of 2021) from the honorable
High Court division of Supreme Court of Bangladesh to call, conduct and hold the Annual General
Meetings of the Company for the calendar year 2019 and subsequent AGM’s and accordingly the 315t
Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of Toyo Spinning Mills Limited will be held on virtual
media (Link to be notify electronically) on Monday, February 28, 2022 at 11.30 a.m. to transact the
following business:

AGENDA :

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 315 June, 2020
together with the reports of Auditors and the Directors.

. To declare Dividend for the year ended June 30, 2020 as recommended in the Board Meeting held on
January 19, 2022.

. To elect/reelect Directors.

. To appoint/re-appoint/Resignation of Director.

. To appoint External/Statutory Auditor for the year 2020-21 and fix their remuneration.

. To appoint Corporate Governance Auditor for the year 2020-21 and fix their remuneration.
. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

)

03N B~ W

By Order of the Board

Dated: Dhaka
February 06, 2022 Mohammad Zaman, ACS, LL.M

Company Secretary
Notes :

1. The record date for this AGM will be February 13, 2022. The shareholders whose names will
appear in the Depository/Share Register on the record date will be entitled/participate and vote in
the Annual General Meeting through Digital Platform.

2. The Board of Directors recommended No Dividend subject to the approval of the shareholders.

3. A member eligible to attend the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend
on his/her behalf.

4. Form of Proxy, duly completed and stamped, must be deposited at company’s Share Department
at least 48 hours before the time appointed for the meeting and in default it will not be treated as
valid.

5. Members are requested to notify change of address, if any, to the company.
6. 30" AGM of the Company shall be conducted through virtual media.

7. The Company will send the link of the online live portal to attend the AGM to the shareholders in
due course.

8. Soft copy of the Annual Reports of the Company will be sent to the shareholders respective e-
mail addresses.

9. Annual Reports will be available on the Company website : http://www.tsml.com.bd
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Clacrman's Statement

Dear Shareholders,
As-salamo Alaikum.

On behalf of myself and the Board of Directors, I express my hearty thanks and cordial welcome
to you all for your presence to grace the occasion. I am glad to have the opportunity to appear
before you and to place the Annual Report and the Accounts for the year ended 30th June, 2020.

At the very outset, we would like to remember with honour our company's Founder Chairman
and Managing Director Haji Md. Mozammel Haque who passed away on September 04, 2017.
May Almighty Allah shower His mercy and forgiveness for the salvation of his departed soul.

Since December, 2019, the outbreak of COVID caused a drastic change in the nature of Yearn
industry. International brands and retailers have suspended clothing orders from Bangladeshi
suppliers and thousands of retail shops in big cities couldn’t survive the lockdown and had to
embrace bankruptcy. Now, the ebb is in the sales in the process of recovering. In the current state
of wax and wane, all these new trends and thoughts are needed to be analyzed and implemented
as well as the inclusion of new technologies in order to capture greater market share. In addition,
a more compatible communication with the buyers can help to make the best outcome from this
new hope of opportunities. Our marketing policy always aimed to achieve the greater market
values by delivering as per the commitment and bonding with the convergence of innovation and
incomparable ideas for buyers’ satisfaction.

In the second half of 2019, trade policy uncertainty and geopolitical tensions continued to weigh
on global economic activity especially manufacturing and trade. Intensifying social unrest in
several countries posed new challenges, as did weather-related disasters from hurricanes in the
Caribbean to drought and bushfires in Australia, floods in eastern Africa, and drought in southern
Africa. Despite these, some indications emerged toward the year-end that global growth may be
bottoming out.

We are operating our company on a time when every business entity in Bangladesh is suffering
from uneven environment, uncertainty in future business and increased prices of raw materials
and utilities. The spinning industry is fully dependent on import of raw cotton, the main raw
material. Occasional ups & downs in the price of raw cotton in the international market puts this
industry in trundle.

However, the future prospect of the spinning industry in our country no doubt is bright. There is
still a gap between the demand and supply of yarn. Readymade garments & knitting factories are
labour-intensive and the cost of labour is slightly low in Bangladesh than other major readymade
garments exporting countries. To take advantage of this lower wages leading to lower cost of
production, new readymade garments and knitting factories are being set up in Bangladesh both
by local and foreign investors. Increase in the volume of exports of readymade garments & knit
products will lead to the increased demand for local fabrics.
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Moreover, with the increase in the population and per capita income, the domestic demand for
cloths will continue to increase. So, the demand for the yarn will rise with the increase in the
demand for cloths / fabrics for export and domestic market. If the capacity for production of yarn
is not enhanced, the shortfall will have to be met by import involving huge amount of foreign
exchange.

During the reporting period was a difficult year for your company as smooth business operation
was hampered badly due to lower production achievement along with decrease of demand and
sales price of the yarn. Like previous years, due to indiscriminate import of foreign yarn at a
dumping price and price in the local market throughout the year, destroyed healthy competition.
Under this adverse scenario, we could not maintain our targeted production, as a result
profitability and turnover of our company were badly affected during the year under review.

Dear shareholders, the export sector is potentially the most vulnerable in Bangladesh since it
depends heavily on U.S. and EU economics. The Textile industry accounts for over three
quarters of export earnings and depends almost entirely on U.S. and EU markets. So, the global
buyers especially from U.S. and EU consider Bangladesh as one of the lucrative apparel sourcing
destinations. Besides, in terms of the global competition both for fine quality and competitive
price Bangladesh export industry has shown positive and cost effective response.

During the period under review the overall marketing performance was very much vulnerable
like previous year. Drastic fall of yarn price due to tremendous decrease of demand of finished
fabrics from both local market & RMG sector that ultimately played a negative role in our
targeted sales achievement. Like previous year, severe entrance of foreign yarn at a dumping
price in the local market throughout the year, abrupt hiking of natural gas for captive power
plants forcing the price downward and the competition to, intensify. But despite of having all
those unpredictable & uncontrollable market factors, our marketing team had always
concentration on keeping the market share intact.

Before concluding, I seek continuous co-operation and constructive advice from the shareholders
to make the Thirty First Annual General Meeting a success.

Cefo lou

Md. Rafiqul Haque
Chairman
01 February 2022
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Directors' Report to the Shareholders
For the year ended 30th June 2020

Dear Shareholders,
As-salamo Alaikum.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I convey hearty compliments, cordial and warm wishes to
all of you for your auspicious presence and kind participation in the twenty ninth Annual General
Meeting of Toyo Spinning Mills Limited. I feel proud to have the opportunity to present before
you the Audited Financial Statements ended on 30th June 2020 of the company together with the
reports of the Chairman, Directors and the Auditors for your consideration and approval.

Business Environment

Compared to the current pandemic situation and the downward trend of many of the worlds’
leading businesses, textile is still growing up. As the war between the United State of America
and China trade is influencing WTO, the current trade environment of Bangladesh is also
affected. Although Bangladesh textile industries are going to encounter a lot of challenges, there
are also so many hopes to overcome all those difficulties and maintain the previous growth. The
development and growth of the industry have been hindered by two consecutive disruptions.
COVID-19, immediately after the peak of Trade War among International Trade of WTO
members, caused a continuation of slow development and growth in the industry. The low cost
of production has always been a competitive advantage for Bangladesh. It is expected that
Bangladesh will consolidate its position as COVID-19 razed spinning sector by the policy
support through stimulus packages for export oriented industries by Government and also by the
swift, strategic approach by the authorities.

Continuous changes in the global market always invite the increase of fabric demand. Outbreak
of COVID-19 and a long period of lockdown added extra pace to that change. The contagious
nature of this breathing disease has added a few long-term multidimensional disruptions to the
Industry, including Health and Safety concerns at the workplace. Maintaining a social distance at
the workplace, could slow down the regular trend of the industry and the nature of the industry as
well, Speed order & Super speed order are increased due to shift to online order rather than
regular order. The changing demand health-conscious market will require new fabric
development. That has to contain environment friendly manufacturing infrastructure and use of
more expensive chemicals in response to go green call and environment and compliance
requirements, health safety assurance, especially in post COVID-19 pandemic milieu.

The particular industrial sector of Bangladesh we are now reviewing has gone through lot of
obstacles in the last few years. This has affected the growth of the sector, by rising energy and
raw material costs and ever growing labor unrest. The ongoing global economic crisis is having
an impact on all export dependent economies. Even high performing countries like China and
India have recorded slowdowns. Other high performing economies like those of Malaysia,
Thailand, Philippines and Indonesia are also suffering badly because of the ongoing crisis.
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During the period under review the overall marketing performance was very much vulnerable
like previous year. Drastic fall of yarn price due to tremendous decrease of demand of finished
fabrics from both local market & RMG sector that ultimately played a negative role in our
targeted sales achievement. Like previous year, severe entrance of foreign yarn at a dumping
price in the local market throughout the year, adrupt hiking of natural gas for captive power
plants forcing the price downward and the competition to, intensify. But despite of having all
those unpredictable & wuncontrollable market factors, our marketing team had always
concentration on keeping the market share intact.

I would like to mention that due to adverse effect of covid-19 (Pandemic of Corona Virus), the
company had fall in negative impact on earning net profit of Tk.(300,857,391) during the year
2019-2020 with decrease in turnover of Tk.70,470,831 as compared to previous period. The
decrease of turnover due to adverse effect of COVID-19 and previously declared lockdown by
the government.

Operations Review

Your company as usual, was prompt to take necessary steps to counter possible threats and
difficulties although there was intense tooth and nail competition from different privileged
countries having competitive advantages. With consistently rigorous cost management, we were
able to keep the expenses within frame.

At the end of the financial year 2019-20 the total turnover of the company was registered at
Tk.237.28 million as against turnover of Tk.307.75 million in 2018-19. The resultant of all
factors has led the company to achieve a negative income of Tk.300.86 million in the reporting
year.

Financial Report

The operating financial results of the company for the year under review in comparison to the
previous year are given hereunder:

Particulars 2019-2020 Taka 2018-2019 Taka
Sales Revenue 237276000 307746831
Cost of Goods Sold 232896915 295453567
Gross Profit 4379085 12293264
Admin/Selling/Written off Expenses 136969998 89478112
Financial Expenses 166990427 163106309
Operating Profit/(Loss) (132590913) (77184848)
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Non-operating Income - -
Allocation to WPPF - -
Net Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (299581339) (240291157)
Ratios (%) % %
Gross Profit to Sales 1.85 3.99
Admin/Selling/Written off Expenses to Sales 57.73 29.08
Financial Expenses to sales 70.38 53.00

Board Audit Committee

The company has an audit committee, which met four times during the year 2019-2020, to
consider first quarter, half yearly, third quarter and annual accounts ended 30th June, 2020
alongwith auditors report on the annual accounts.

Appropriation and Dividend

The Directors propose to appropriate as follows:

Particulars 2019-2020 2018-2019
Taka Taka
Accumulated Surplus/Deficit-Opening Balance (417934695) (174875142)
Add : Net Profit/(Loss) for the year (300857391) (243059553)
Accumulated (Deficit) / Surplus (718792087) (417934695)

On the basis of the proposed appropriation the Board of Directors has not recommend any
dividend for the year under report.

The Board of Directors and Election

The following persons were the members of the Board of Directors of the company in the
reporting year. The number and amount of shares held by each Director at the beginning and end
of the reporting financial year are also furnished in the following statement as per Stock
Exchange Listing Regulations.
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Name Designation | Shares Amount | Share Amount

held Taka | held Taka
01.07.2019 30.06.2020

Mr.Md. Rafiqul Haque Chairman 6164343 | 61,643,430 6164343 | 61,643,430

Mr.Md. Atiqul Haque Managing 6164345 | 61,643,450 6164345 | 61,643,450

Director

Mrs. Rabeya Khatun Director 1788772 | 17,887,720 1788772 | 17,887,720

Mr.Md.Mahbub-UI Director 6164345 | 61,643,450 6164345 | 61,643,450

Haque

Mr. Md. Shafiqul Islam BDBL Nil Nil Nil Nil

[Note-1] Director

Mr. Md. Abdul Allam | Independent Nil Nil Nil Nil

[Note-2] Director

Mr. Md. Abu Saleh Independent Nil Nil Nil Nil

[Note-3] Director

Note-1: Mr.A.K.M Hamidur Rahman, Nominated Director of BDBL, resigned on May 20, 2020
and appointed Mr. Md. Shafiqul Islam as Nominated Director from BDBL w.e.f May 20, 2020;
Note-2: Mr. Md. Abdul Allam resigned from the post of Independent Director w.e.f May 20,
2020;

Note-3: Mr. A.M.M Ziaul Haq retired from the post of Independent Director w.e.f May 20, 2020
and Mr. Md. Abu Saleh appointed in place of Mr. A.M.M Ziaul Haq as Independent Director
w.e.f May 20, 2020;

In accordance with Article 120 of the Articles of Association of the company Mr. Md. Atiqul
Haque retire from the Board, and being eligible they have offered themselves for re-election as
per Article 121 of the Articles of Association of the company.

Environmental Role

The Company is committed to maintain high standard of pollution free environment at mill area.
Accordingly tree plantation activities is implementing every year at mill premises.

Annual General Meetings (AGM):

We received an order (Company Matter No. 200 of 2021) from the honorable High Court
division of Supreme Court of Bangladesh to call, conduct and hold the Annual General Meetings
of the Company for the calendar year 2019 and subsequent AGM’s. The matter was filed to the
honorable High Court division of Supreme Court under section 81(2) read with 85(3) and 396 of
the Companies Act 1994 for an order directing Toyo Spinning Mills Ltd. changes the name from
Tallu Spinning Mills Ltd. to call, conduct and hold the pending AGM’s.
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Appointment of Statutory Auditors:

Company’s Present auditor M/s. Ashraf Uddin & Co., Chartered Accountants, Rahman
Chamber, 12-13, Motijheel C/A, Dhaka-1000, was appointed Auditors of the Company in the
30" AGM to conduct the audit for the financial year 2019-2020. M/s. Ashraf Uddin & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, is a panel auditors of BSEC. In recommendation of the Audit
Committee, the Board recommended M/s. Ashraf Uddin & Co., Chartered Accountants, Rahman
Chamber, 12-13, Motijheel C/A, Dhaka-1000 for appointment as statutory auditors of the
Company for the year 2020-2021 with fixation of their remuneration of Taka 80,000/-(Taka
Eighty Thousand) only. In compliance to the aforesaid notification, the shareholders have to re-
appoint the existing auditors at the 315 Annual General Meeting for the financial year 2020-
2021.

Compliance Auditor

Corporate Governance is the practice of good corporate citizenship, through which the company
is governed by the board, keeping in view its accountability to the shareholders, stakeholders and
to the society. The status report required to be presented by the company in pursuance to
notification No.BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 3 June 2018 issued by the
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission is furnished in the Annexture-I.

It is required to appoint a practicing Professional Accountant/Secretary for conducting
compliance audit for the year 2019-20 on corporate governance code by Bangladesh Securities
and Exchange Commission (BSEC) in compliance with the provision of 9(2) of BSEC
Notification dated 3 June 2018 Ref. No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 in order to
obtain a certificate on compliance of conditions of the said Corporate Governance Code of the
Commission.

M/s. Haruner Rashid & Associates, Chartered Secretary, Address- Chand Mansion (6th Floor)
66, Dilkusha C/A, Dhaka-1000 compliance auditors of the company being ecligible offered
themselves for re-appointment as corporate governance compliance auditors of the company for
the year 2020-2021. In recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board recommended M/s.
Haruner Rashid & Associates, Chartered Secretary, Address- Chand Mansion (6th Floor) 66,
Dilkusha C/A, Dhaka-1000 for appointment as corporate governance compliance auditors of the
Company for the year 2020-2021 with fixation of their remuneration.

Corporate Governance

The company complied with all the applicable rules and regulations of Corporate Governance
Guidelines as per Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 3 June 2018
issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission to ensure good governance.
(Annexure-I)

The Board of the company consist of 5 (five) members including 1 (one) Independent Director,

is the supreme authority for the management of the Company and the board also form 2 (two)
committees as a Audit Committee and another is Nomination & Remuneration Committee to
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ensure good governance in the company. Two individuals have filled up the positions of the
Chairman and the Managing Director. The company has appointed Chief Financial Officer,
Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit and Compliance. The roles, responsibilities and
duties of all the personnel have been clearly defined.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC):

According to condition 6 of the Corporate Governance Code, the board of directors need to form
a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC). There should have at least 03 (three)
members including at least one Independent Director and non-executive directors where the
independent director would be the chairman. The board shall determine and recommend the
Terms of Reference (ToR). The board of directors of Bangas Limited states that the conditions as
stated in condition 6 of the Corporate Governance Code shall be complied with.

As per Corporate Governance Code, the company has constituted a 3-members Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (NRC) as a sub-committee of the Board to assist the board in
formulation of the nomination criteria or policy for determining qualifications, positive
attributes, experiences and independence of Directors and top level executive as well as a policy
for formal process of considering remuneration of Directors and top level executives.

The Board of Directors of Toyo Spinning Mills Limited has established the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee comprises of three members on 20" May, 2020, headed by the
Independent Director, Mr. Md. Abu Saleh. The other members of the committee are, Mr. Md.
Atiqul Haque and Mr. Md. Mahbub-Ul-Haque Directors of the company.

Conclusion

Esteemed shareholders, we are confident that your company would continue to receive your
unstinted support and valued patronization during the days ahead. There is no room for doubt
that the achievement so far made by the company is the outcome of concerted efforts by the
employees of the company, guidance of the Board of Directors, patronization of our financial
patrons and all-out co-operation of our esteemed shareholders. We offer our heartiest
congratulations and convey sincere thanks to all of them on this auspicious day for the company.

We have futher the liberty and privilege to offer sincere thanks and gratitude to Securities and
Exchange Commission, Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges, National Board of Revenue for
their suport and co-operation throughout the year.

On behalf of the Board

~hi—

Md. Atiqul Haque
Managing Director
01 February 2022
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Particulars 2019-2020 Taka 2018-2019 Taka
Sales Revenue 237276000 307746831
Cost of Goods Sold 232896915 295453567
Gross Profit 4379085 12293264
Admin/Selling/Written off Expenses 136969998 89478112
Financial Expenses 166990427 163106309
Operating Profit/(Loss) (132590913) (77184848)
Non-operating Income - -
Allocation to WPPF - -
Net Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (299581339) (240291157)
Ratios (%) % %
Gross Profit to Sales 1.85 3.99
Admin/Selling/Written off Expenses to Sales 57.73 29.08
Financial Expenses to sales 70.38 53.00
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Particulars 2019-2020 2018-2019
Taka Taka
Accumulated Surplus/Deficit-Opening Balance (417934695) (174875142)
Add : Net Profit/(Loss) for the year (300857391) (243059553)
Accumulated (Deficit) / Surplus (718792087) (417934695)
aRIfis IR fSfers ARG 217 2fStave SR IR &5 THICT STSFIR* N Feaf |
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TR |
Name Designation | Shares Amount | Share Amount

held Taka | held Taka
01.07.2019 30.06.2020

Mr.Md. Rafiqul Haque Chairman 6164343 | 61,643,430 6164343 | 61,643,430

Mr.Md. Atiqul Haque Managing 6164345 | 61,643,450 6164345 | 61,643,450

Director

Mrs. Rabeya Khatun Director 1788772 | 17,887,720 1788772 | 17,887,720

Mr.Md.Mahbub-UI Director 6164345 | 61,643,450 6164345 | 61,643,450

Haque

Mr. Md. Shafiqul Islam BDBL Nil Nil Nil Nil

[Note-1] Director

Mr. Md. Abdul Allam | Independent Nil Nil Nil Nil

[Note-2] Director

Mr. Md. Abu Saleh Independent Nil Nil Nil Nil
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
For the Year ended 30th June 2020

Toyo Spinning Mills Limited having an Audit Committee as a sub committee of the Board of Directors
in order to assist the Board of Directors in ensuring and fulfilling its oversight responsibilities.

The Audit Committee consists of the following persons:

Mr. Md.Abu Saleh, Independent Director - Chairman
Mr. Md. Mr. Md. Atiqul Haque, Managing Director - Member
Mr. Md. Mahbub-Ul Haque, Director - Member

The Scope of Audit Committee was defined as under:

(a) Review and recommend to the Board to approve the quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial
statements prepared for statutory purpose;

(b) Monitor and oversee choice of accounting policies and principles, internal control risk
management process, auditing matter, hiring and performance of external auditors are in the line
with the requirement of the company;

(c) Carry on a supervision role to safeguard the systems of governance and independence of
statutory auditors; and

(d) Review and consider the report of internal auditors and statutory auditors' observations on
internal control.

Activities carried out during the year

The Committee reviewed the integrity of the quarterly and annual financial statement and
recommended to the Board for consideration. The Committee had overseen, reviewed and approved
the procedure and task of the internal audit, financial report preparation and the external audit
reports. The Committee found adequate arrangement to present a true and fair view of the activities
and the financial status of the company and didn't find any material deviation, discrepancies or any
adverse finding/observation in the areas of reporting.

20 AP Lo

Md.Abu Saleh,
Chairman

Audit Committee
Date: 19 January, 2022
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ANNEXURE1

The Directors also report that:

The financial statements of the Company present true and fair view of Company's state of affairs, result of its
operations, cash flows and changes in equity

Proper books of accounts as required by law have been maintained.

Appropriate accounting policies have been followed in formulating the financial Statements and Accounting estimates
were reasonable and prudent.

The financial statements was prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standard (IAS) as applicable in
Bangladesh.

The internal control system is sound in design and effectively implemented and monitored.

There are no significant doubts upon the company's ability to continue as a going concern.

There is no significant deviation from the operating result of the last year.

The number of board meetings and the attendance of directors during the year 2017-2018 were as follows:

Name of Directors Meeting Held Attended
Mrs. Rabeya Khatun 8 6
Mr. Md. Atiqul Haque 8 8
Mr. Md. Rafiqul Haque 8 8
Mr. Md. Mahbub-Ul Haque 8 8
Mr. Md. Shafiqul Islam 8 3

(Nominated by BDBL)
Md. Abu Saleh
(Independent Director)

(oo}
N

The pattern of shareholding (alongw th name wise detail) of parenVsubsidiary/associated companies and other
related parties, directors, chief executives officer, company secretary, chief financial officer, head of internal audit
and their spouse and minor children, executives, shareholders holding 10% or more voting interest in the company
as at 30th June, 2018 were as stated in ANNXURE-II.

Securities and Exchange Commission compliance report is enclosed herewith as ANNEXURE-III.

Key operating and financial data of last eleven years have been presented in summarized form in ANNEXURE-IV.
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ANNEXURE-II

Pattern of Shareholding as on June 30, 2020

and minor children:

Particulars Shares Held Percentage Remark
Parent Company N/A
Associated Companies: N/A
Directors:

Mr. Md. Rafiqul Haque 6,164,343 6.90%

Mr. Md. Mahbub-Ul Haque 6,164,345 6.90%

Mr. Md. Atiqul Haque 6,164,345 6.90%

Mrs. Rabeya Khatun 1,788,772 2.00%

Chief Executive Officer(CEO) and his spouse 6,164,345 6.90%

Chief Financial Officer(CFQO) and his spouse
and minor children:

Company Secretary(CS) and his spouse and
minor children:

Head of Internal Audit(HIA) and his spouse and
minor children:

Executives(Top five salaried person other than
CEO,CFO,CS,HIA):

1. Mr. Md. Ekramul Haque, GM, Procurement

2. Mr. Md. Akram Uddin, AGM, Share

3. Mr. Md. Jonab Ali, Manager (Sales & Marketing)

4. Mr. Md. Shohel Rana, Asst. Manager (Commercial

Shareholders Holding 10% or more voting right
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ANNEXURE-II

Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Commission's No ification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/134/Admin/44 dated 07

August 2012 issued under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969:

Annual Report 2019-2020

. Compliance Status R k
Condition Title (Putin ﬂ1ep appropriate column) ggﬂ;)s
No. Complied Not complied
1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
1.1 Board size : Board members should not be less than v
5(five) and more than 20(twenty)
1.2 Independent Directors
1.2 (i) Independent Director : at least 1/5th v
1.2 (i)a) | Holding / Holding less than 1% share v
1.2 (i)b) | Connection with the Company's Management v
1.2 (i)c) | Relationship v
1.2 (i)d) | Not a member / Director of stock exchanges v
1.2 (H) e) | Nota Shareholder/Director/officer of any member of
stock exchanges v
12 (H)f) |Nota partner /executive 7 was not a partner of
company's audit firm v
1.2 (H)g) | Who shall not be a Independent Director more than v
3 companies
1.2 (H) h) | Not defaulter by a court v
1.2 (H)i) | Not convicted for a criminal offence v
1.2 (Hi) Shall be appointed by the Board of Directors and ¥
approved by the shareholders the AGM
1.2 (iv) The post can not vacant more than 90 days v
1.2(v) The Board Tay down a code of conduct of all Board
of members and annual compliance of the to be v
recorded
1.2 (vi) Tenure of Independent Director shall  be 3 years v
which may be extended for 1 year
1.3 Qualification of Independent Director (ID)
1.3 (i) Financial Knowledge v
1.3 (ii) Professional experience v
1.3 (iii) Relaxed of qualification
1.4 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer v
1.5 The Directors’ Report to Shareholders
1.5() Industry outlook and possible future developments in V4
the industry
1.5 (i) Segment-wise or product-wise performance v
1.5 (iii) Risks and concerns v
1.5(iv) A discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross Profit v
Margin and Net Profit Margin
1.5 (v) Discussion on continuity of any Extra -Ordinary gain v
or loss
1.5 (vi) Basis for related party transactions- a statement of v
all related party transactions should be disclosed in
the annual report
1.5 (vii) Utilization of proceeds from public issue, rights issue v
and /or through any others instruments
1.5 (viii) An explanation if the financial results deteriorate v
after the company goes for IPO, Repeat IPO, Rights
Offer, Direct Listing etc.
1.5 (ix) If significant Variance occurs between Quarterl v
Financial performance and Annual financia
Statements the management shall explain about the
variance on their Annual Report.
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No.

Title

. Compliance Status
(Put in the appropriate column)

Complied | Not complied

Remarks
(if any)

15 (x)

Remuneration to Directors Including Independent
Directors

N/A

1.5 (xi)

The financial statements  prepared by the
management of the issuer company present fairly its
state of affairs, the results of its operation, cash
flows and changes in equity.

1.5 (xii)

Proper books of accounts of the issuer company has
been maintained

1.5 (xiil)

Appropriate accounting  policies has been
consistently applied in preparation of the financial
statement and that the accounting estimated are
based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

1.5 (xiv)

International Accounting standard (IAS) /Bangladesh
Accounting standard (BAS) / International Financial
Reporting Standard / Bangladesh Financial
Reporting Standard, as applicable in Bangladesh,
have been followed in preparation of the financial
statements and departure there-from has
adequately disclosed

1.5 (xv)

The system of internal control is sound in design and
has been effectively implemented and monitored.

1.5 (xvi)

There are no significant doubts upon the issuer
company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
the issuer company is not considered to be a going
concern, the fact along with reason thereof should
be disclosed.

1.5 (xvii)

Significant deviations from the last year's operating
results of the issuer company shall be highlighted
and the reason thereof should be explained.

1.5 (xviil)

Key operatng and financial data of at least
preceding 5 years shall be summarized.

1.5 (xix)

If the issuer company has not declared dividend
(cash or stock) for the year, the reasons thereof shall
be given.

1.5 (xx)

The number of Board meeting held during the year
and attendance by each director shall be disclosed.

1.5 (xod)

The pattern of shareholding shall be reported to
disclose to aggregate number of share (along with
name wise details where stated below) held by :-

1.5 (xxi) @)

Parent/Subsidiary/Associated companies and other
related parties (name wise details) :

1.5 (xxi) b)

Director, Chief Executive  Officer, Company
Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal
Audit and their spouse and minor children (name
wise details) :

Executives;

Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more
voting interest in the company (name wise details) :

A brief resume of the Director

Nature of his/her expertise in specific functional
areas;

SRS

Name of companies in which the person also holds
the directorship and the membership of committees
of the board.

N/A
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Title

Compliance Status
(Putin the appropriate column)

Complied | Not complied

Remarks
(if any)

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO), HEAD OF
INTERNAL AUDIT AND COMPANY SECRETARY
(Cs)

Appointment

The Company shall appoint a Chief Financial Officer
(CFO), a Head of Internal Audit (Internal Control and
Compliance), a Company Secretary and
Responsibilities.

2.2

Requirement to attend the Board Meetings

Audit Commiittee

|«

3(D)

Audit Committee as a sub-committee of the Board of
Directors

3 (i)

The Audit Committee shall assist the Board of
Directors in ensuring that the financial statements
reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company and in ensuring a good monitoring system
within the business.

3 (i)

The Audit Committee shall be responsible to the
Board of Directors.

3.1

Constitution of Audit Committee

Kyl

The Audit Committee shall be composed of at least 3
(three) members

310

The Board of Directors shall members of the audit
committee who shall be directors of the company and
shall include at least 1 (one) independent director

A ERNE AN RN

31 (i)

All members of the audit committee should be
"financially literate" and at least 1 (one) member shall
have accounting or related financial management
experience

3 ()

Duration and Re-appointment

G

3.1 (v)

The Secretary shall act as the secretary of
Committee

&

3.1 (vi)

The quorum of the Audit Committee meeting shall not
constitute without at least 1 (one) independent
director

3.2

Chairman of the Audit Committee

AN RN

3.2 (i)

The Board of Directors shall select 1 (one) member
of the Audit Committee to be Chairman of the Audit
Committee, who shall be an independent director

G

3.2 (ii)

Chairman of the Audit Committee shall remain
present in the AGM

3.3

Role of Audit Committee

3.3 (i)

Oversee the financial reporting process

3.3 (ii)

Monitor choice of accounting policies and principals

3.3 (ii)

Monitor Internal Control Risk Management process

3.3 (iv)

Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors

3.3 (v)

Review along with the management, the annual
financial statements before submission to the Board
for approval.

SKKINIS

3.3 (vi)

Review along with the management, the quarterly &
half yearly financial statements before submission to
the Board for approval.
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Condition . Compliance Status Remarks
Title (Put in the appropriate column) (if any)
No. Complied Not complied
3.3 (vii) Review the accuracy of internal audit function
3.3 (viii) Review the statement of significant related transaction v
submitted by the management.
3.3 (ix) Review management letters/ Letter of Internal Control v
weakness issued by statutory auditors.
3.3 (x) When money is raised through initial IPO/RPO/Right
Issue the company shall disclose to the Audit v
Committee
3.4 Reporting of the Audit Committee v
3.4.1 Reporting to the Board of Director v
3.4.1(0) The Audit Committee shall report on its activities to the v
Board of Directors
3.4.1(i)a) | Report on conflicts of interests v
3.4.1()b) | Suspected o presumed fraud or irregularity or v
material defect in the internal control system
341 (i)c) | Suspected infringement of laws, including securities v
related laws, rules and regulations
3.4.1())d) | Any other matter which shall be disclosed to the v
Board of Directors
3.4.2 Reporting to the Authorizes N/A
3.5 Reporting to the Shareholders v
4 EXTERNAL /STATUTORY AUDITORS:
4 (i) Appraisal or valuation services or fairness opinions v
4 (i) Financial information systems design  and v
implementation
4 (iii) Book-keeping or other services related to the v
accounting records or financial statements
4 (iv) Broker-dealer services v
4 (v) Actuarial services v
4 (vi) Internal audit services v
4 (vii) Any other service that the Audit Committee determines N
4 (viii) No partner or employees of the external audit firms
shall possess any share of the company they audit at
least during the tenure of their audit assignment of that
company
4 (ix) Audit/Certification services on Compliance of v
Corporate Governance as required under Clause (i) of
Condition no:7
5 SUBSIDIARY COMPANY:
5 (i) Provisions relating to the composition of the Board of
Directors of the holding company shall be made N/A
applicable to the composition of the Board of Directors
of the subsidiary company
5 (ii) At least 1 (one) independent director on the Board of N/A
Directors of the holding company shall be a director on
the Board of Directors of the subsidiary company
5 (iii) The minutes of the Board meeting of the subsidiary N/A
company shall be placed for review at the following
Board meeting of the holding company
5 (iv) The minutes of the respective Board meeting of the N/A
holding company shall state that they have reviewed
that affairs of the subsidiary company also.
5(v) The Audit committee of the holding company shall also N/A
review the financial statements, in particular the
investments made by the subsidiary c ompany
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Condition Compliance Status
Title (Put in the appropriate column) Rg;naa;;s
No. Complied Not complied
6 DUTIES OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO)

AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO), The
CEO and CFO shall certify to the Board that:-

6 (i) They have reviewed financial statements for the year v
and that to the best of their knowledge and belief:
6 (i) a) These statements do not contain any materially v

untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading

6 (i) b) These statements together present a true and fair v
view of the company's affairs and are in compliance
with existing accounting standards and applicable
laws

6 (i) There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no v
transactions entered into by the company during the
year which are fraudulent, illegal or violation of the
company's code of conduct

7 REPORTING AND COMPLIANCE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE:

7() The company shall obtain a certificate from a v
practicing Professional ~ Accountant/Secretary

(Chartered Accountant/Cost ad  Management
Accountant/Chartered Secretary) regarding
compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance
Guidelines of the Commission and shall send the
same to the shareholders along with the Annual
Report on a yearly basis.

7 (ii) The Directors of the company shall state, in v
accordance with the Annexure attached, in the
directors report whether the company has complied
with these conditions
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ANNEXURE-IV

Key operating and financial data have been presented below in summarized form;

Assets, Liabilities And Equity (Taka in Million)
Year Fixed Assets Current Total Equity Total Debt Current
Assets Liabilities
2008 463.67 631.11 217.97 421.84 454.97
2009 579.79 674.05 199.55 532.17 522.12
2010 676.55 743.23 205.48 805.13 409.16
2011 850.90 713.74 223.59 895.15 445.90
2012 843.93 889.64 283.91 882.68 566.98
2013 1229.42 1078.67 1191.83 714.09 402.16
2014 1357.45 1239.86 1314.80 805.72 477.79
2015 1392.61 1287.84 1325.14 820.55 535.77
2016 1327.50 1400.79 1270.40 912.38 546.51
2017 1288.92 1411.11 1170.03 994.25 536.74
2018 1246.43 1468.20 1069.40 1089.29 556.94
2019 1215.92 1320.68 826.34 1204.93 505.33
2020 1158.66 1200.50 525.48 1198.16 635.51

Sales, Net Profit, Rate of Dividend

Year )
Sales Cost of Net Profit Rate of Reserve &

(Turnover) Goods Sold Before Tax Dividend Surplus
2008 1004.84 891.42 (16.10) - 19.01
2009 816.91 698.53 (18.42) - 00.58
2010 888.16 755.18 7.53 10:00% 25.33
2011 974.98 801.02 18.10 15.00% 37.50
2012 1495.34 1228.97 73.82 10.00% 69.91
2013 1485.14 1150.18 155.38 15.00% 134.70
2014 1551.38 1222.11 146.54 151.74
2015 1344.30 1140.58 19.03 10:00% 162.07
2016 1302.40 1148.35 (47.55) 26.12
2017 947.99 852.66 (95.27) - (74.25)
2018 867.66 770.18 (96.79) - (174.87)
2019 307.75 295.45 (240.29) - (417.93)
2020 237.27 232.89 (299.58) - (718.79)
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Taka in Million

Taka in Million

Graphical Highlights
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GRAPHICAL HIGHLIGHTS
Tatal Equity
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CEO & CFO'S Declaration To the Board of Directors of Toyo Spinning Mills Limited

The Board of Directors

Toyo Spinning Mills Limited
South Avenue Tower, 6th Floor
House # 50, Road # 03
Gulshan Avenue, Gulshan-1
Dhaka-1212.

Subject: Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on June 30, 2019
Dear Sir(s),

Pursuant to the condition No. 1(5)(xxvi) imposed vide the Commission's Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80:
Dated June 03, 2018 under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969, we do hereby declare that:

(1) The Financial Statements of Toyo Spinning Mills Limited for the year ended on June 30, 2019 have been prepared in
compliance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as
applicable in the Bangladesh and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed;

(2) The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and reasonable basis, in
order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view;

(3) The form and substance of transactions and the Company's state of affairs have been reasonably and fairly presented in
its financial statements;

(4) To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of internal control and
maintenance of accounting records;

(5) Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the established policies and
procedures of the Company were consistently followed; and

(6) The management's use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements isappropriate
and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. In this regard, we also certify that:

(i) We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on June 30, 2019 and that to the best of our knowledge
and belief:

(a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that
might be misleading;

(b) these statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards and applicable laws.

(ii) There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which
are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the company's Board of Directors or its members.

Thanking you,

Sincerely,

Md. Atiqul Haque Md. Rumon|Mia
Managing Director Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
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_Jr:ﬂ Haruner Rashid & Associates
[ ~ Im]

Chartered Secretaries & Managemeaent Consultants

Report to the Shareholders of
Bangas Limited
on
Compliance on the Corporate Governance Code

We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code by Toyo Spinning Mills
Limited for the year ended on June 30, 2020. This Code relates to the Notification
No.BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 03, 2018 of the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the Company. Our
examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by the Management
in ensuring compliance to the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code.

This is a scrutiny and verification and an independent audit on compliance of the conditions of the
Corporate Governance Code as well as the provisions of relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards
(BSS) as adopted by Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those
standards are not inconsistent with any condition of this Corporate Governance Code.

We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations, which we have required, and after
due scrutiny and verification thereof, we report that, in our opinion:

(a) The Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code as
stipulated in the above mentioned Corporate Governance Code issued by the Commission;

(b) The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial
Standards (BSS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) as
required by this Code;

(¢) Proper books and records have been kept by the company as required under the Companies Act,
1994, the securities laws and other relevant laws; and

(d) The Governance of the company is satisfactory.

Place: Dhaka

Dated: February 24, 2022 @M:__J; .

A.K.M. Haruner Rashid LL.B, FCS
CEO & Consultant

Haruner Rashid & Associates
Chartered Secretaries

Chand Mansion (6th Floor) 66, Dilkusha C/A, Dhaka-1000
Cell: +8801711105322
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Annexure - “1V ”
[ Ref: CG 1(5) (xxv)]

Management's Discussion and Analysis

The Management Of Toyo Spinning Mills Limited, Continue the effort to run the business with high level of integrity,
accountability & honesty. Quality of work, skilled human recourses is the main assets of the company.
We have maintained the friendly work environment, good governance and comply all rules and
regulations.

The management also comply the all applicable rules and regulations for its financial information also
preparing the financial statements. In additions to that the management states that-

a) Appropriate accounting policies and estimation made for preparation of financial statements.

b) There is no significant change in Accounting Policies and estimations that may impact on financial
position and financial performance.

c) Comparative analysis
The comparative analysis of key components of Financial Statements given below.

Taka in Million

Particulars 2019-2020 2018-2019 2017-2018 2016-2017
Tumover (Gross) 237.27 307.75 867.66 947.99
Net Profit before tax (299.58) (240.29) (96.79) (95.27)
Eamings Per Share (3.37) (2.72) (1.13) (1.12)

d) Comparison of financial performance, financial position.

Bangas Limited is the manufacturing company in Bangladesh to produce different types of own branded
biscuits and breads. Management analyze the financial performance and growth of the company with other
related manufacturing company also analyze the domestic and international market scenario.

e) Financial and Economic scenario briefly explained in Director's report.
f) Risks and concerns issues given in the note of Financial Statements.

e

Md. Atiqul Haque
Managing Director
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Annexure —“V?”
[ Ref: CG 1(5) (xxiv) (c) ]

Companies other than Toyo Spinning Mills Limited in which TSML Directors hold
Directorship and committee Membership

SIl. | Name of Directors . . Member of the
No. Directorship Board

Committee

01 Mr. Md. Rafiqul Haque Board of Directors
(1) Toyo Knitex (CEPZ) Limited 2’1% Mgmber,
F udit Committee
(2) Bangas Limited 2 NRG
. Board of Directors
. (1) Toyo Knitex (CEPZ) Limited and Member,
02 Mr. Md. Atiqul Haque (2) Bangas Limited Audit Committee
& NRC
Board of Directors
(1) Toyo Knitex (CEPZ) Limited and Member,

03 Mrs. Rabeya Khatun Audit Committee

(2) Bangas Limited

Board of Directors

(1) Toyo Knitex (CEPZ) Limited and Member

04 | Mr. Md. Mahbub-Ul Haque o A o e oo
(2) Bangas Limited PP i

05 Mr. Md. Shofiqul Islam Nil Nil

06 Mr. Md. Abu Saleh Nil Nil

Annexure — “V1”
Policy, evaluation criteria and activities of NRC (At a glance) [ Ref: CG 6(5) (c)]

¢ identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in top level
executive position in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommended their appointment and
removal to the Board;

¢ formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the Board;

¢ identifying the company's needs for employees at different levels and determine their selection,
transfer or replacement and promotion criteria; and

¢ developing, recommending and reviewing annually the company's human resources and training
policies;

Annexure - “VI1”
CODE OF CONDUCT OF NRC

In compliance with the conditions of BSEC Corporate Governance Code, the Board of Bangas Ltd. has
formulated a code of conduct, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC) for the Chairperson of the Board and other Board members of the Company, and annual
compliance of the code is recorded accordingly.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders ‘Toyo Spinning Mills Limited’

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ‘Toyo Spinning Mills Limited’(‘the
company) which comprise the Statement of Financial Position on 30™ June, 2020 and Statement of Profit
or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other Explanatory Notes to the Financial Statement.

In our opinion, the financial statements prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards
(IAS) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) give a true and fair view of the financial
position of ‘Toyo Spinning Mills Limited’ as of 30" June, 2020 and results of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended & comply with the Companies Act 1994, & other
applicable laws & regulations.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the ethical requirement that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Bangladesh, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern:

We draw attention to note no:12 in the financial statements which indicates that the company has incurred
net loss for consecutive years. Reported net loss of the company for the year 2019 & 2020 are almost Tk.
243.05 mn and 300. 85 mn respectively. This financial performance may result in inability of the
company to pay its debt when they fall due .

We also draw attention to note no: 34 financial expenses Tk.166.99 mn in conjunction with operating
loss of Tk.(132.59) mn reported in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for
the year ended 30™ June, 2020, which shows that the interest cover ratio of the company is negative. The
company is not able to pay the finance cost which may cause end of the loan facility for the lenders. If
bank and financial institution refuse to reschedule loan, the company will suffer from unavailability of
working capital and shortage fund to facilitate capital expenditure.

These events or conditions indicate that, a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

Emphasis of Matter:

We draw attention to note no: 2.8 regarding the difficulties arising from legal proceedings by Bank and
Non Bank Financial Institution (NBFI) against the company. We emphasize on the issue because it
describes events that is not in total control of the company. In each individual case, the actual outcome
may differ with the expectation of the company. This is not a modification of our opinion either.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgments, were of most significant in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

1.Revenue Recognition
Ref: Note 29.00

Key audit matters

How our audit address the matter

The company recognized revenue of
Tk.237,276,000/- for the year.
Revenue recognition has  significant and

widespread influence over the financial statements
and plays a vital role in calculating Corporate Tax.
Since, revenue recognition is one of the
performance indicators in almost all sector, there
always exist risk of revenue smoothing or window
dressing.

As per IFRS 15 revenue is recognized when a
performance obligation is satisfied by transferring
control over a promised good or service.

-We clearly encoded the total procedure sales
starting from receipt of customer order to
realization of revenue.

-We inspect the local sales invoice processing and
relevant control imposed by management.

-We tested the key controls over approval of sales
order, signing of documents by appropriate
personnel and input sales data into system in a
complete & accurate manner.

-We tested the correctness of journal entries and
recalculate the amount shown in sales ledger and
make sure that the carry forward figure is accurate.

-We carefully checked that, no unusual journal
entries were made at the period end and also check
the transactions/entries just before and after the
balance sheet date to confirm cut off.

-We also considered the principles of IFRS 15 in
recognizing revenue for the reporting period.

-We checked the adequacy of disclosure in the
financial statements in line with relevant financial
reporting standards.

2.Deferred Tax Liability
Ref: Note 21.00

Key audit matters

How our audit address the matter

As per IAS 12 Income Taxes, the two components
of the company’s estimated tax is Current Tax &
Deferred Tax. There is a deferred tax liability of
58,000,272/- which is equivalent to 2.37%
compared to total assets of the company.

The temporary difference of deferred tax consists

Our approach includes but not limited to following:

-We verified that right opening balances are carried
forward in deferred tax account.

-We made sure that ,the tax base is according to
3rd schedule of ITO 1984 and the accountant of the
company have clear understanding of posting the
associated journal entries.
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critical calculation and forecast. The uncertainty in
forecasting or lack of expertise may results in
material misstatements which may have an impact
on corporate tax.

-We verify the relevant SRO to confirm the tax rate
used.

-We consider the impact of revalued amount of
fixed asset in the calculation of deferred tax.

- We recalculated the figures presented in the
financial statements and made sure they are in
agreement with general ledger.

-We evaluated the adequacy of financial statement
disclosures including key assumptions, judgments
and sensitivities.

3. Newly adopted IASs & IFRSs
Ref: Note 3.17

Key audit matters

How our audit address the matter

The company has adopted new financial reporting
standards and applied changes in its accounting
policy and judgment in the preparation of financial
statements for the year under audit.

Adoption and application of new reporting
standards require careful professional judgment and
assumption. They have widespread impact on the
preparation of the financial statements. Improper
application may result in significant deviation
among key performance indicators of the company.

- Obtained an understanding from the management
regard company policy in adoption of new
International Accounting & Financial Reporting
Standards.

-We reviewed the process followed by the
management in adopting and implementing new
standards of reporting.

- Assesses the assumptions made while applying
those standards.

- Analyze the impact on overall financial results
due to adoption of new IFRS.
-Carried out recalculation where necessary.

- We checked the adequacy and appropriateness of
disclosure requirements.

Other Information

The company’s Annual General Meeting (AGM) for 2019 & 2020 was withheld which is a non
compliance of Listing Regulation of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission(BSEC) as well as
Companies Act-1994.The company has filed a petition at Honorable Supreme Court for the revised AGM

date.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act 1994 and the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, we also report
the following:

a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appeared from our examination of these books;

c¢) The statements of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of accounts and returns; and

d) The expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the Company’s business.

N

Md.Mohiuddin Ahmed FCA,CFC
Enrollment no: 1046

Partner
Place:Dhaka Ashraf Uddin & Co.
Date:19/12/2021 Chartered Accountants

DVC: 2201181046AS385791
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Toyo Spinning Mills Limited
Statement of Financial Position
As at 30th June, 2020

PARTICULARS Notes

30 June, 2020 Taka

30 June, 2019 Taka

NON CURRENT ASSETS:

Property, Plant and Equipments 8 1,157,665,757 1,214,921.,210
Investment in Central Depository Bangladesh Limited 24 1,000,000 1,000,000
Total Non-Current Assets 1,158,665,757 1,215,921,210
CURRENT ASSETS :
Inventories 23 582,418,912 622,065,307
Accounts Receivables 25 499,204,558 596,020,664
Advances, deposits and prepayments 26 102,561,697 86,202,136
Tax Deducted at Source 27 16,052,051 16,052,051
Cash and cash equivalents 28 264,031 344,231
Total Current Assets 1,200,501,249 1,320,684,389
Total Assets 2,359,167,005 2,536,605,599
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share Capital 9 893,353,750 893,353,750
Retained Earnings 12 (718,792,087) (417,934,695)
Revaluation Surplus 13 350,925,529 350,925,529
525,487,192 826,344,584
NON- CURRENT LIABILITIES :
Term Loan (Secured) 14 822,193,451 822,193,451
Deferred Tax Liability 21(A) 58,000,272 58,147,876
Other Non-Current Liabilities 16 317,972,351 324,587,351
Total Non Current Liabilities 1,198,166,074 1,204,928,678
Current Liabilities:
Short Term Loan (Secured) 15 419,331,660 421,410,351
Creditors for Goods & Expenses (Unsecured) 17 8,997,351 10,263,816
Creditors for Other Finance 18 137,629,325 5,526,424
Income Tax Payable 19 69,555,403 68,131,747
Total Current Liabilities 635,513,739 505,332,337
Total Shareholder's Equity and Liabilities 2,359,167,005 2,536,605,599
Net Asset Value Per Share 5.88 9.25

The annexed notes form (1-53) an integral part of these accounts.

o ~J— %,

Md. Rafiqul Haque Md Atiqul Haque
Chairman Managing Director

This is the statement of Financial Position referred to in our report of even date.

. Mohammad Zaman
Cornpany Secretary

Md. Rumon Mia
Chief Financial Officer

Md.Mohiuddin Ahmed FCA, CFC
Enrollment no: 1046

Partner

Ashraf Uddin & Co.
Dhaka Chartered Accountants

Dated: 04/05/2021

DVC: 2201181046AS385791
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Toyo Spinning Mills Limited
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

TOTAL TAKA TOTAL TAKA JUNE
PARTICULARS NOTES JUNE 30, 2020 30, 2019
Turnover 29 237,276,000 307,746,831
Less: Cost of Goods sold 30 232,896,915 295,453,567
GROSS PROFIT 4,379,085 12,293,264
Less:
Administrative expenses 32 12,251,962 15,024,385
Impairment Losses 25 120,543,706 70,705,112
Selling and Distribution Expenses 33 4,174,330 3,748,615
Total Cost and Expense 136,969,998 89,478,112
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) (132,590,913) (77,184,848)
Financial Expenses 34 166,990,427 163,106,309
Add: Non-Operating Income 35 - -
Less: Non-Operating Loss 0 - -
NET PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE WPPF (299,581,339) (240,291,157)
Less: Allocation for WPPF | - | | - |
NET PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (299,581,339) (240,291,157)
Less: Tax Expenses
Current Tax 1,423,656 1,846,481
Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income) 21(B) (147,604) 921,916
Total Tax Expenses 1,276,052 2,768,397
NET PROFIT/(LOSS) AFTER TAX (300,857,391) (243,059,553)
Earnings per Share 37 3.37) (2.72)
The annexed notes are integral part of these accounts.
Cfolon

Md. Rafiqul Haque Md Atiqul Haque Md. Mohammad Zaman Md. Rumon Mia
Chairman Managing Director Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

This is the Statement of Profit or Loss & Other Comprehensive Income referred to in our report of even date. W‘/\[
.

Md.Mohiuddin Ahmed FCA, CFC
Enrollment no: 1046

Partner

Ashraf Uddin & Co.
Dhaka Chartered Accountants
Dated: 04/05/2021 DVC: 2201181046AS385791
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Toyo Spinning Mills Limited

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

ASSETS REVALUATION RETAINED
PARTICULARS SHARE CAPITAL RESERVE EARNINGS TOTAL
TAKA TAKA TAKA TAKA
Balance as on June 30, 2019 893,353,750 350,925,529 (417,934,695) 826,344,584
Net Profit/(Loss) for the year After Tax - - (300,857,391) (300,857,391)
Issue of Bonus Share - - - -
Balance as on June 30, 2020 893,353,750 350,925,529 (718,792,087) 525,487,192
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
SHARE CAPITAL ASSETS REVALUATION RETAINED EARNING TOTAL
PARTICULARS RESERVE
TAKA TAKA TAKA TAKA
Balance as on June 30, 2018 893,353,750 350,925,529 (174,875,142) 1,069,404,137
Net Profit/(Loss) for the year after Tax - - (243,059,553) (243,059,553)
Issue of Bonus Share - - - -
Balance on June 30, 2019 893,353,750 350,925,529 (417,934,695) 826,344,584

The annexed notes form (1-53) an integral part of these accounts.

(efo o

Md. Rafiqul Haque
Chairman

d— %

Md Atiqul Haque

Managing Director

Md. Mohammad Zaman
Company Secretary

This is the Statement of Changes in Shareholders' Equity referred to in our report of even date.

Dhaka
Dated: 04/05/2021

Md. Rumon Mia
Chief Financial Officer
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Toyo Spinning Mills Limited
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE, 2020

.. 2019-2020 2018-2019
Description Note
Taka Taka
Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Collection from Turnover and other Income 52A 213,548,400 333,518,382
Payments for Cost and Expenses 52B (37,944,483) (211,148,854)
Payments for Financial Expenses 34 (166,990,427) (163,106,309)
Tax Paid and / or Deducted (Note-19) - -
Total Cash Flow from Operating Activities 8,613,490 (40,736,781)
Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Purchases of Fixed Assets (Sch A,B,C & D) - (30,911,281)
Total Cash Flow from Investing Activities - (30,911,281)
Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Long Term Obligation Increased/ (Decreased), (Note-14 & 16) (6,615,000) 114,719,705
Short Term Obligation Increased/ (Decreased), (Note-15) (2,078,690) (43,254,625)
Total Cash Flow Financing Activities (8,693,690) 71,465,080
Net Cash inflow/(outflow) for the period (80,200) (182,981)
Opening cash & Cash Equivalents 344,231 527,212
|Closing cash & Cash Equivalents 264,031 344,231
|Net Operating Cash Flow Per Share 0.10 | | (0.46)|

The annexed notes form (1-53) an integral part of these accounts.

(efo o

Md. Rafiqul Haque

This is the Cash Flow statement referred to in our report of even date.

Dhaka
Dated: 04/05/2021

Md Atiqul Haque
Chairman Managing Director

Md. Mohammad Zaman
Company Secretary

Md. Rumon Mia
Chief Financial Officer
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TOYO SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30™ June, 2020

1. INCORPORATION AND BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

1.1. Reporting Entity:
Toyo Spinning Mills Limited was incorporated in Bangladesh under the Companies Act 1994 vides
Registration No-3-14500/2018. The company is formerly known as Tallu Spinig Mills Ltd. incorporated
as a public limited company in 20 July,1985.The first commercial production commenced in 1989.The
change of name was approved by the Registrar of Joint Stock Companies (RJSC) and Bangfladesh
Investment Development Authority (BIDA) in 2018. The company is listed in both Dhaka and
Chittagong Stock Exchange. Current category of the company as per capital market listing is “Z”.

The registered office of the company is located at South Avenue Tower (6% floor),
House:50,Ro0ad:03,Gulshan Avenue,Gulshan-1,Dhaka-1212 Bangladesh. Production unit situated at
Kaltapara, Gouripur, Mymensing, Bangladesh.The company has another production unit at Daulatdiar,
Chuadanga,Bangladesh but that facility is no more in use for production. Except land & building all other
machineries transferred to Mymensing.

1.2 Nature of business

Toyo Spinning Mills Limited is a cotton yarn manufacturing company. They import raw cotton and
produce yarn. The company sells its product basically in local market.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1. Statement of Compliance:
The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act
1994 and other relevant local laws as applicable and in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) including International Accounting Standards (IASs), Securities and Exchange Rules
1987 adopted by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) based on International
Accounting Standards (IASs) and International Financial Reporting standards (IFRSs).

2.2. Measurements of the elements of financial statements:
These financial statements have been prepared based on going concern, consistency and accrual concepts
and such other convention as required by IAS-1 for fair presentation of financial statements.
2.3. Components of Financial Statements:
The financial Statements of the company consist of the following components:
a) Statement of Financial Position;
b) Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income;
¢) Statement of Changes in Equity;
d) Statement of Cash flows and;
e) Accounting Policies & Explanatory Notes to the Financial Statements.
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2.4.Functional and presentation currency:
The financial statements are presented in Bangladesh Taka (BDT/Tk.) except where indicated
otherwise, which is both functional currency and presentation currency of the company. The figures of
financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest BDT/Tk. Figures in brackets indicate
deductions.

2.5.Use of estimates and judgments:
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting
Standards requires measurements to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses
and disclosure requirements of contingent assets and liabilities during and at the date of financial
statements.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions of accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate
is revised and in any future periods affected as required by IAS 8: Accounting policies, Changes in
accounting estimates and Errors.
In Particular, significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect of the amounts recognized in the financial statements
include depreciation, inventory valuation, accrued expenses and tax provision.

2.6. Reporting period:
These financial statements of the company cover a period of one year from 1% July 2019 to 30" June,
2020.

2.7. Comparative information and rearrangements thereof:

In accordance with the provisions of I AS-34: Interim Financial Reporting, Comparative information
has been disclosed for all numerical information in the financial statements and also the narrative and
descriptive information where it is relevant for understanding of the current period’s financial
statements.

Comparative figures have been re-arranged wherever considered necessary to ensure better
comparability with the current period without causing any impact on the profit and value of assets and
liabilities as reported in the financial statements.

2.8. Going Concern:

The company has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future. For this reason
the Directors continue to adopt Going Concern Basis in preparing the accounts. Although, the company
is suffering from consecutive net loss, the management has taken adequate plans to overcome the
situation. These plans includes ensuring the maximum use of production capacity which was hampered
in this reporting period for the reason explained in note no:3.30 Significant deviation in EPS. Due to
decreasing sales volume, the company is struggling to manage to pay are financial expenses with
available operating profit. However the liquidity ratios (Current ratio 2.75 : 1, Acid test ratio 1.52 : 1
)are still considered good to settle the current liability of the business when they fall due under normal
course of business.
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Currently the company is doing business with one customer in large quantity but to avoid the risk

factor the company is ready to sign new agreements with 04(four) new customer in forthcoming year
[ref note:3.29 d(ii)].The company is facing some difficulties with short and long term bank loan which
is disclosed below .The management has taken necessary steps to reschedule the loans to ensure

working capital availability of the company.

Detail of legal proceedings along with updated status:

SL Name of Name of
No Case No. SC Case No. Petitioner Accused Next Date Legal Stage Court Name
1st
Additional
Tallu Spinning For Charge & .
1 CR1172/16 SC-25270/19 | BDBL Mills Ltd. 2/9/2021 Fresh bill Metropohta
n Session
Court
3rd
Additional
Tallu Spinning For Charge & .
2 CR1173/16 SC-25271/19 | BDBL Mills Ltd. 6/6/2021 Fresh bill Metropohta
n Session
Court
Tallu Spinnin Metropolita
3 | CR2308/16 BDBL LU SPING | 16 /772020 RFT (on Bill) n Magistrate
Mills Ltd.
Court 19
8th
Additional
Tallu Spinning For Charge & .
4 | CR2900/16 SC-10563/20 | BDBL Mills Ltd. 2/7/2021 Fresh bill Metropohta
n Session
Court
. L Metropolita
5 | CR943/16 International | TalluSpinning | 4 10,5051 | WP&A(on Bill) | n Magistrate
Leasing Mills Ltd.
Court 19
. - Metropolita
6 | CR402/20 International | Tallu Spinning | ; /; /> W/A n Magistrate
Leasing Mills Ltd.
Court 32
CR . L Metropolita
. International Tallu Spinning -
7 | 208/20(Khilgao Leasing Mills Ltd. 12/30/2020 S/R n Magistrate
n) Court 7
8 | CR1172/16 BDBL TalluSpinning | 4 185019 | w/a MM-19
Mills Ltd.
9 | CR1173/16 BDBL Tallu Spinning | /16 /5019 W/A MM-19
Mills Ltd.
10 | CR2308/16 BDBL TalluSpinning | 15 76 5018 | WpgA MM-12
Mills Ltd. )
11 | CR2900/16 BDBL TalluSpinning | 15 /31 5018 | wy/A MM-12
Mills Ltd. )
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12 | CR943/16 ILr:aesr;agﬁonal 11;/?111112 ifé““i“g 4/16/2019 s/R MM-12
International Tallu Spinning

13 | CR877/16 Leasing Mille Lot 1/9/2019 W/A MM-12

2.9. Accrual Basis of Accounting:

Ay

An entity shall prepare its financial statements, except for cash flow information, using the accrual
basis of accounting. When the accrual basis of accounting is used, an entity recognizes items as assets,
liabilities, equity, income and expenses (the elements of financial statements) when they satisfy the
definitions and recognition criteria for those elements in the framework.

2.10.Offsetting:

An entity shall not offset assets and liabilities or income and expenses, unless required or permitted by
a IFRS.

2.11.Events after reporting Period:

According to IAS- 10: “Events after Reporting Period”, events after the reporting period are those
events, favorable or unfavorable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when
the financial statements are authorized for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

Adjusting Events: Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting
period;

Non-adjusting Events: Those are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period.

There was no events after reporting period of such importance for which accounting or disclosure is
required to be adjusted.

From the assessment of the legal advisor regarding the legal proceedings against the company
described in note no:2.8 no additional obligation is likely. It is not probable that, economic benefits will
flow out of the company in the form of penalty other than the scheduled repayment along with the due
interest payment.

The company applied to Bangladesh Development Bank Ltd.(BDBL) and International Leasing for
rescheduling the loan with some immediate payment and submit prayer to withdraw the legal
proceeding against the company.

2.12.Date of Authorization for Issue of The Financial Statements:

On 19/01/2022 Board of Directors reviewed the financial statements and authorized them for issue.

Changes in Accounting Policy, Estimates and Judgment

In accordance with IAS-8 Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, the
company can apply any new accounting policy or bring changes to accounting estimates or correction
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of prior period error which is required by new IFRS or results in more relevant and reliable information
about the effects of transactions on the entity’s financial position, financial performance or cash flows.

Application of new accounting policy shall have a retrospective effect [IAS-8 para 19(b)] as if the that
policy had always been applied..The effect of changes in accounting estimate shall be recognize
prospectively [IAS-8 para 36].If the error is material and affect one or more prior period then the
correction shall have retrospective effect [IAS-8 para 42].

2.13.Revenue Recognition

An entity shall recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promise goods or service to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange of those
goods and services. As per IFRS-15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers ,an entity shall account a
contract with a customer under the scope of this standard subject to the following criteria has been meet:
a) the parties to the contract have approve the contract and committed to perform their
respective obligation;
b) the entity can identify each party’s rights regarding the goods or services to be transferred;
c) identification of payment terms for goods and services;
d) existence of commercial substance;
e) probability of collection of the consideration to which the entity is entitled with(for the
exchange of goods or services).

2.14. IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

At initial recognition as per IFRS-9 Financial Instrument, an entity shall measure a financial asset or
financial liability as its fair value plus or minus (in the case of a financial asset or a financial liability not
at fair value through profit or loss) the transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

After initial recognition (subsequent measurement) an entity shall measure a financial asset or financial
liability in either of the following subject to specific circumstance specified in the standard (sec 4.1.1-
4.1.5)& (4.2.1-4.2.2):

1. amortized cost;
i. fair value through other comprehensive income;
iii. fair value through profit or loss.

The entity shall recognize loss allowance or Expected Credit Loss (impairment requirement). At each
reporting date the entity account for the impairment of financial assets or financial liability in the
following manner:

L an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit loss (if the credit risk of the instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition)
1I. an amount equal to the 12 (twelve) month expected credit loss (if the credit risk of the

instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition)

The company did not carry out an impairment review because in it assumes no impairment has
occurred in this reporting period.
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2.15.IFRS 16 Lease

An entity shall assess a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for
a period of time in exchange for consideration. In line with IFRS-16 Leases, an entity shall determine
the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease together with both:

I.  Period covered by the option to extend the lease and;
II.  Period covered by the option to terminate the lease.

Initial measurement of right of use asset shall be measured at cost and subsequently either by fair value
or follow revaluation model.

The company does not hold any such right of use of asset for non-cancellable period of time in
exchange for any consideration.

2.16.0perating Segment

All entities shall disclose information to enable users of its financial statements to evaluate the nature
and financial effects of the business activities in which it engages and the economic environment in
which it operates. As per IFRS-8 Operating Segments, an operating segments is a component of an
entity;
i.  that engaged in business, earns revenue & incur expenses;
ii.  economic results and performance evaluated by chief operating decision maker on regular
basis and;

iii.  for which discrete financial information is available.
In line with clause 3 (three) of IFRS-8 Operating Segment, the company is not required to apply this
IFRS as it has no such segmented operation that comply with the requirements of IFRS 8.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies and methods of computation used in preparation of financial statements for the
year ended 30" June, 2020 are consistent with the policies and methods adopted in preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 30" June, 2019.

. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT:

Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are recognized at cost amount less accumulated depreciation in

compliance with Bangladesh Accounting Standard (IAS)-16: Property, Plant and Equipment. The cost

of acquisition of an asset comprises its purchase price including import duties and non-refundable taxes

and any direct attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use.
Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that future benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity

and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to
the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income during the financial year in which
they incurred.
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Addition during the year

. (Amount in Tk.) (Amount in Tk.)
Name of Property, plant and equipment 2020 2019

Plant and Machinery - 18,181,281
Factory Sheds Civil construction - -

Electric Installation - -

Building(stuff & officer accommodation) - 5,500,000
Building(Security officer accommodation & Dining) - 3,500,000
Under Ground Tank for water - 2,200,000
Air Compressor - 1,530,000
Total - 30,911,281

There is no intangible asset during the period and the fixed assets do not include any assets held under
lease. On retirement or otherwise disposal of fixed assets, the cost and accumulated depreciation are
eliminated and any gain or loss on such disposal is reflected in the income statement which is
determined with reference to the net book value of assets and net sales proceeds. However there is no
disposal or retirement of fixed asset during the current period.

Depreciation:

The Property, Plant & Equipment acquired during the year from different head of assets were available
for use and were capable of operating in a manner intended by the management and generating revenue.

Depreciation has been charged on a Reducing Balance method starting from the dates when the asset
were available for use and capable of generating revenue as intended by the management. However, no
asset has been classified or was intended to classify as ‘Held for sale’ under IFRS 5 during the year.

3.2. Impairment:

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment loss. If any such indication exists, recoverable amount is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. Impairment loss is recorded on judgmental
basis, for which provision may differ in the future years based on the actual experience. An impairment
loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of the asset exceeds recoverable amount. Impairment
losses, if any, are recognized in the statements of profit and loss and other comprehensive income. It
was confirmed that no such fixed asset has been impaired during the period and therefore no provision
has been made for that for the asset.

3.3. Advances, deposits and prepayments:
Advances are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition advances are carried at cost less
deductions or adjustments. Deposits are measured at payment value. Prepayments are initially
measured at cost. After initial recognition prepayments are carried at cost less charges to Statement of
Profit of Loss and Other Comprehensive Incomes.

3.4. Cash & Cash Equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and cash at bank which are held and available for use
by the company without any restriction. Cash at bank again comprises of —
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On current/ Short notice Deposit Accounts with the following banks:-
1. United Commercial Bank Ltd.

2. Exim Bank Ltd.

4. Bangladesh Development Bank Ltd.

5. Modhumoti Bank Ltd.

6.Basic Bank Ltd.

. Receivables:

Accounts receivables are recognized and stated at original invoiced amounts and carried at anticipated
realizable values in which goods are exported. Bad debts are written off when it is established that they
are irrecoverable.

. Accrued Expense and Other Payables:

Liabilities are recognized for the goods and services received, whether paid or not for those goods and
services. Payables are not inertest bearing and are stated at their nominal value.

. Borrowing Costs:

Interest bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the amount of proceeds received, net of
transaction costs. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of plant and
equipment are capitalized as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are ready for
their intended use. Al other borrowing costs incurred during the period was recognized as revenue
expenses in accordance with IAS-23: Borrowing Costs.

. Responsibility for preparation and presentation of Financial Statements:

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of Financial Statements
under section 183 of the Companies Act 1994 and as per the provision of the Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB). Accordingly the management has fulfilled the above provision.

. Provisions and Accruals:

Provisions

Provision are recognized when Generation Next Fashions Limited has a present obligation as a result of
a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation , and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If a
transfer of economic benefit is no longer probable the provision should be reversed. Where the effect of
the time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation.

Accruals
Accruals are liabilities to pay for goods or services that have been received or supplied but the financial
impact of the event will only be confirmed by the outcome of some future event not wholly within the

entity’s control.
rage o0 AR
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3.10.Foreign Currency:
Foreign currencies are translated into BDT at the rates ruling on the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities are reconverted at the rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities are reported using the exchange rate at the date of respective transactions. Differences
arising on conversion are charged to statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income.The
company does not calculate for foreign exchange gain/ loss because all sales and purchase are
local. The import LC values are paid as per the equivalent BDT amount mentioned in the bill of entry.

3.11.Taxation:
The expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax is recognized in profit
and loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or items recognized directly in
equity.
Current tax
Current tax is, as per IAS- 12: Income Taxes, the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date and any adjustment to the
tax payable in respect of the previous year. Provision for current income tax has been made on 12%
on business income as per Finance Act 2018 and SRO for Garments industries and also made 25% on
other income for public limited company as prescribed on the Income Tax Ordinance 1984.The
calculation has been shown in the note 25.
Deferred Tax:
Deferred tax arises due to temporary difference deductible or taxable for the events or
transactions which is recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. A temporary difference is the difference between the tax base of an asset or liability and
its carrying amount / reported amount in the statement of financial position. Deferred tax assets
or liability is the amount of income tax recoverable or payable in the future periods recognized
in the current year as per IAS 12: Income Tax.

3.12.Finance expense:
Finance expense comprises interest expenses on term loan, overdraft, and bank charges. All finance
expenses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income except
those are capitalized in accordance with IAS-23: Borrowing Costs.

3.13.Earnings per share:

This has been calculated in compliance with the requirements of IAS 33: Earnings per Share by
dividing the basics earnings by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
period.
Basic Earnings:
This represents earnings for the period attributable to ordinary shareholders. As there was no preference
dividend, minority interest or extra ordinary items, the net profit after Tax for the period has been
considered as fully attributable to the ordinary shareholders.

3.14.Weighted Average Number of Shares:
The basis of computation of number of shares is in line with the provisions of IAS-33: Earnings Per
Share. Therefore the total number of shares outstanding at the end of the period multiplied by a time
weighting factor which is the number of days the specific shares were outstanding as proportion of total
number of days in the period.
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3.15.Diluted Earnings per Shares
There is neither any share option available for relevant parties nor there is any potential transaction that
may took effect to increase the total number of outstanding shares. No calculation as per 1AS-33

Earnings Per Share is required.

3.16.Employee Benefits

The company maintains defined benefit plan for its eligible permanent employees. The eligibility is
determined according to the terms and conditions set forth in the respective deeds.

The company has accounted for and disclosed employee benefits in compliance with the provisions
of IAS-19: Employee Benefits.

The cost of employee benefit is charged off as revenue expenditure in the period to which the
contributions relate.

The company’s employee benefits include the following:

Short Term Employee Benefits

These includes better working conditions in line with overseas customer’s requirement, Day care center,
Health care facility, Transportation for admin and management employee, Advance against salary,
Festival bonus etc. Obligations for such benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided.

Contribution to Worker’s Profit Participation Fund

The company is required to comply with sec-234 of Banngladesh Labour Act-2006 & Sec-65 of Revised
Act-2013  regarding 5% of annual profit distribution among employees. Due to reporting net loss the
company did not provide for WPPF in 2020.
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3.17 Compliance with Financial Standards as applicable in Bangladesh:

The following IAS & IFRS is applicable to the financial statements for the period under
review:

IASs Compliance
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements Complied
IAS 2 Inventories Complied
IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows Complied
IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates & Complied

Errors
IAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period Complied
IAS 12 Income Taxes Complied
IAS 16 Property, Plant & Equipment Complied
IAS 19 Employee Benefits Complied
IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates Complied
IAS 23 Borrowing Costs Not Applicable
IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures Complied
IAS 28 Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures Not Applicable
IAS 33 Earnings Per Share Complied
IAS 36 Impairment of Assets Complied
IAS 37 Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets Complied
IAS 38 Intangible Assets Not Applicable
IAS 40 Investment Property Not Applicable
IAS 41 Agriculture Not Applicable
IFRSs
IFRS 1 First Time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards Complied
IFRS 2 Share Based Payment Not Applicable
IFRS 3 Business Combinations Not Applicable
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures Complied
IFRS 8 Operating Segments Not Applicable
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments Complied
IFRS 10 | Consolidated Financial Statements Not Applicable
IFRS 11 | Joint Agreements Not Applicable
IFRS 13 | Fair Value Measurement Complied
IFRS 15 | Revenue from Contracts with Customers Complied
IFRS 16 | Leases Not Applicable
IFRS 17 | Insurance Contracts Complied
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3.18 Related party Disclosure:
For the financial year ended 30™ June, 2020 the company did not enter into any financial transactions
that require separate disclosure except the remuneration paid to directors.

3.19 Long Term loan:
Long term loan consists of loans and financial obligations lasting over one year. The long term loan
outstanding of Tallu Spinning Mills Limited, as on 30" June, 2020 are fully secured by first charge on
the fixed assets of the company.

3.20 Short Term Loan:
Short term loan refers to a loan scheduled to be repaid in less than a year. The company obtains short
term loan from various sources to finance the temporary working capital needs.
These are secured; falling due within one year. The security and other term are specified as follows:
Time Loans are fully secured by first charge on the fixed assets of the company.
Packing Credit, Bill Purchase and other Loans are against Lien on Master/Export L/Cs.

3.21 Capital Expenditure Availed:
There was no Capital expenditure contracted but not incurred or provided for as on 30.06.2020.
There was no material capital expenditure authorized by the Board but not contracted for as on
30.06.2020.

3.22 Contingent Liabilities And Contingent Assets:

Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability arises where a past event may lead to an entity having a liability in the future but

the financial impact of the event will only be confirmed by the outcome of some future event will only
be confirmed by the outcome of some future event not wholly within the entity’s control. A contingent
liability should be disclosed in the financial statements unless the possible outflow of resources is
thought to be remote.

Contingent Asset

A contingent asset is a potential asset that arise from past events but whose existence can only be
confirmed by the outcome of future events not wholly within an entity’s control. A contingent asset
should be disclosed in the financial statements only when the expected inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

The company does not have any contingent liability or contingent assets as on 30.06.2020.

3.23 Claims not Acknowledged:
The nature and description of the claims as on 30.06.2020 is stated in note no:3.22.

3.24 Credit Facilities Availed:
Credit facilities availed from Bangladesh Development Bank Limited and International Leasing as on
30.06.2020 and Trade credit available in the ordinary course of business. No other credit facilities were
available to the company as on 30.06.2020.

ey



Toyo Spinning Mills Limited £Y T Report2019-2020-

3.25 Commission, Brokerage or Discount Against Sales:

No other commission, brokerage or discount was incurred or paid by the company against sales during

the year ended June 30, 2020.

3.26

(@)

(b)

(o

(d)
i)

Risk Factors and Management's Perceptions about the Risks

The Company is operating in an industry involving both external and internal risk factors having direct
as well as indirect effects on its business, result of its operations and financial condition, as follows:

Interest rate risks:

Interest rate is concerned with borrowed funds of short term & long-term maturity. Interest rate risk is
the risk that the company faces due to unfavorable movements in the interest rates. Volatility in money
market & increased demand for loans/ investment funds raise the rate of interest. A change in the
government's policy also tends to increase the interest rate. High rate of interest enhances the cost of
fund of a company. Such rises in interest rates however mostly affect companies having floating rate
loans.

Management perception:

The Company maintains a reasonable debt/ equity ratio; and accordingly, adverse impact of interest rate
fluctuation will not adversely affect the Company's performance as the Company emphasizes on equity
base financing to reduce the dependency on borrowing. Therefore, management perceives that the
fluctuation of interest rate on borrowing would have little impact upon the performance of the Company.

Exchange rate risks:

If exchange rate increases against local currency opportunity is created for getting more revenue against
sale in local currency. On the other hand, if exchange rate goes down, margin is squeezed in local
currency.

Management perception:

The products of the company are sold in foreign currency and payment for raw materials are made
mostly in foreign currency. Therefore, volatility of exchange rate will have little impact on profitability
of the Company.

Industry risks:

Industry risks refers to the risk of increased competition from foreign and domestic sources leading to
lower prices, revenues, profit margin, and market share which could have an adverse impact on the
business, financial condition and result of operation.

Management perception:

The Company has established its brand name in the market with its quality products, range of products
and customer services. Therefore, industry risks will be limited.

Market and technology-related risks:
Market risks:
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Market risk refers to the risk of adverse market conditions affecting the sales and profitability of the
Company. Mostly, the risk arises from falling demand for the product or service which would harm the
performance of the company. One the other hand, strong marketing and brand management would help
the company to increase their customer base.

Management perception:

Market for the Company's products is growing at an exponential rate with growth of urbanization and
incremental income level of consumers along with their preference to convenience. Therefore, market
risks will be minimal.

Technology-related Risks:

Technology always plays a vital role for the existence of any industrial concern, ensuring better service
to the customers and minimizing the cost in various aspects. Any invention of new and more cost
involving technology may cause technological obsolescence and negative operational efficiency. Any
serious defects in the plant and machinery may affect production and profitability calling for additional
investment for replacement.

Management perception:
The Company utilizes its Market Research Team that is continuously working for in-depth
understanding of the customer needs and preferences and accordingly, arranging its technology.

Potential or existing government regulations risks:

The Company operates under Companies Act, 1994, Income Tax Rules, 1984; VAT and Supplementary
Duties Act, 2012 and VAT and Supplementary Duties Rules, 2016. Any abrupt changes of the policies
made by the regulatory authorities may affect its activities.

Management perception:

Unless any policy change that may negatively and materially affect the industry as a whole, the business
of the Company is expected not to be affected significantly. It is highly unlikely that the Government
will initiate any fiscal measure that may have adverse effect on the growth of the industry.

Potential changes in global or national policies:

The performance of the Company may be affected by the political and economical instability, both in
Bangladesh and worldwide. Any instance of political turmoil and disturbance in the country may
adversely affect the economy in general.

Management perception:

The Company can prosper in a situation of political stability and a congenial business environment.
Political turmoil and disturbance are bad for the economy and so also for this sector. The Company is
always aware of all types of turmoils and if the smooth supply of material is hampered or faces any kind
of disruptions, it will supply it in future and try to keep its operation smooth.

Operational Risks:

Operational risks refer to the possibility of plant shut down due to disruption in supply of gas,
technological failure, natural calamities, human errors and other unforeseen events. Such incidences may
lead to non operation, large overhauling costs and financial losses.

Management perception:
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Bangladesh Government is meeting this challenge by opening the energy generation to private sector;
and also making massive investment, which is expected to ensure availability of energy for uninterrupted
operation. The Company perceives that allocation of its resources properly with contingency approaches
can reduce this risk factor to great extent.

(h) Input Cost Risks:

Input cost risk is the risk of a business when procuring materials or commodities in high global demand.
Increasing demand and supply shortages create volatility in these commodity values; and therefore, the
timing, quantity and price of purchase must be closely planned.

Management perception:
Management of the Company would hedge their exposure to input price volatility by adjusting its selling
price.

@) Credit Risks:

Impairment of Financial Asset- Accounts Receivables

The company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit loss allowance for all
trade receivables. To measure the expected credit loss, accounts receivables are grouped based on shared
risk characteristics and the time elapsed ( month passed). The company has therefore concluded that the
expected credit loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable approximation of loss rates.

The expected credit loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 36 month
before 30 June, 2020 and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of customers to settle the receivables. The company has also considered the
current downturn in GDP and overall unemployment due to covid-19 pandemic situation in which it sells
its goods to be the most relevant factors and accordingly adjust the historical loss rates based on
expected changes in these factors.

> (06 month | >12 month | >24 month >36 month Total
30 June, 2020 Current Past due Past due Past due Past due (TK)
ﬁﬁecred loss 0.00% 2% 10% 25% 51%
Gross carrying 104,462,432 | 50,650,792 | 105,775,995 | 284,865,471 | 73,993,574 | 619,748,264
amount
Loss Allowance 0 1,013,016 1,055,600 | 71,216,368 | 37,736,723 | 120,543,706

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as net impairment losses within operating
profit. Subsequent recoveries (if any) of amounts previously written off are credited against the
same line item.

4.00 Significant Deviation in EPS

The Earning Per Share of the company falls significantly for the year ended 30" June, 2020 and
come to Tk.(3.37) which were Tk.(2.72) for the year ended 30" June, 2019.

Due to pandemic COVID-19 situation the company lost a number of sales order and revenue
decreased. On the other hand, same situation worsen the credit rating of our customers which in
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turn impose great impact on recoverability of those debt. Charging the loss allowance (Expected
Credit Loss) in current year profit and loss account further worsen the reported EPS.

5.00 Insurance Contracts:

IFRS 17 was issued in May 2017 and applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021.IFRS 17 established the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of insurance contracts within the scope of the standard. The objective of IFRS 17
is to ensure that an entity provides relevant information that faithfully represents those
contracts. The company has not yet assessed in potential impact of IFRS 17 on its financial
statements.

5.00 Implications of COVID-19 on our business:

The COVID-19 pandemic has developed rapidly in 2020. The resulting impact of the virus on
the operations and measures taken by Bangladesh Government to contain the virus has
negatively affected the group’s results in the reporting period.

The currently known impacts of COVID-19 on the company are:

1. A 23% decline in total revenues for the year ended 30" June, 2020 compared with the
year ended 30" June, 2019.

Closure of the group’s production facilities for few months.

Unwanted loss on receivables due to devaluation of customers credit rating.

Number of work Orders from major customers reclassified as “Call on Hold”.
Redundancy cost of temporary workforce.

kWD

These developments result in approximately BDT. 130 mn loss of sales which results in 68%
decline in Net Profit in comparison with previous period (2019).

There were no additional difficulties regarding loan covenants based on the aroused COVID-19
situation. The conditions remain same as last year with the classified amounts.

In response to these matters, the entity has taken the following actions:

1. We avail the COVID-19 loan initiative by Government of Bangladesh.
11. We downsize the workforce to cut down cost at a tolerable level.
III. We renegotiate with our customers to rearrange the sales and took confirmation for
not cancel the “Call on Hold” orders.
V. We renegotiate with concern Bank to reschedule our loans to ensure smooth supply
of working capital.

Although it is not certain that these efforts will be successful, management has determined that
the actions that it has taken are sufficient to mitigate the uncertainty prevailing at current
conditions.

7.00 General
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June 30,2019 Taka

2,291,965,083
30,911,281

2,322,876,364

1,045,530,668
62,424,485

1,107,955,153

8.00  Property, Plant and Equipments

June 30,2020 Taka
Cost (A)
Opening Cost as on 01-07-2018 2,322,876,364
Add: Addition during the year -
Less: Disposal during the year -
Closing Cost as on 30-06-2019 2,322,876,364
Accumulated Depreciation (B)
Opening Accumulated Depreciation as on 01-07-2018 1,107,955,153
Add: Charged during this year 57,255,454
Less: Disposal during the year -
Closing accumulated depreciaiton as on 30-06-2019 1,165,210,607
Written Down Value (A-B) 1,157,665,757

(Details are shown in Schedule A & B)

1,214,921,210
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09.00

10.00

11.00

12.00

13.00

13.0A

SHARE CAPITAL: June 30, 2020
Taka June 30,2019 Taka
Authorised Capital:
200,000,000 Ordinary Shares of TK. 10 each 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
Issue, Subscribed and Paid-Up Capital:
89,335,375 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10 each fully paid up 893,353,750| 893,353,750
893,353,750 893,353,750
COMPOSITION OF SHAREHOLDINGS :
L % of Share Holding | % of Share Holding
.of I . of Sh
Description No. of Investor No. of Shares June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018
Sponsors 11 25,943,119 29.04 29.04
ICB & Body Corporate 248 15,195,947 17.01 17.01
General Public 10,276 48,196,309 53.95 53.95
Total 10,535 89,335,375 100.00 100.00
SHAREHOLDINGS STRUCTURE :
A distribution schedule of equity security and the number of holders and percentage in the
following categories as on 30-06-2019 is shown below :
Class Interval No. of Holders Total Holding June30,2019 % June30.2018 % of
of Share Holding Share Holding
Less than 500 4,082 956,349 1.07 1.05
501 to 5000 4,389 9,693,195 10.85 10.86
5001 to 10000 1,207 6,421,958 7.19 7.17
10001 to 20000 923 7,407,262 8.29 8.33
20001 to 30000 151 3,881,913 4.35 4.40
30001 to 40000 99 2,913,704 3.26 3.23
40001 to 50000 58 2,160,452 2.42 2.40
50001 to 100000 85 5,871,106 6.57 6.57
100001 to 1000000 58 12,343,989 13.82 13.82
1000000 Over Shares 10 37,685,447 42.18 42.18
11,062 89,335,375 100.00 100.00
June 30, 2020 Taka June 30,2019
Accumulated Deficit: Tk. (718,792,087) Taka
Opening Balance (417,934,695) (174,875,142)

Add: Net profit/(Loss)
Issue of Bonus Share

(300,857,391)

(243,059,553)

(718,792,087)

(417,934,695)

Closing Balance
Revaluation Surplus : Tk. 350,925,529
s June 30,2019
Description June 30,2020 Taka Taka
Revaluation Surplus 350,925,529 350,925,529
Total 350,925,529 350,925,529

The transfer of revaluation was made in accordance with paragraph 39 of BAS 16 as the said amount of revaluation surplus has been
accumulated in equity under the heading of Revaluation Surplus.
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14.00 Term Loan Secured : Tk. 822,193,451
Description June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
Taka Taka
BDBL 822,193,451 822,193,451
822,193,451 22,193,451
Total T 822,193,45
14.0A BDBL Long Term Loan
Nature of Security:
L. First pari-passu Equitable Mortgage on immovable property of present and future.
II. First pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation on all other assets of the company both present and future
Rate of Interest :
13% per annum.
Terms of Re-payment and Validity :
In half yearly installments to be ended on December 2022.
15.00 Short Term Loan Secured : Tk.419,331,661
Particulars June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
Taka Taka
EXIM Bank CC A/C 414,793,560 416,872,251
EXIM Bank Import Liability & Bank Guarantee 4,538,100 4,538,100
Total 419,331,660 421,410,351

Cash credit is secured against hypothecation of entire stocks and book debts to the bank comprising of raw materials, work-in-process,

16.00 Other Non-Current Liabilities : Tk.

The above non-current amount has been created as a result of re-structuring the LTR outstanding with BASIC Bank Limited with a term
of 5 ( five) years excluding 18 months grace period during re-location to be re-payable in 60 (sixty) equal monthly installments at 9.00%

interest rate per annum .

17.00 Creditors for Goods and Expenses Unsecured : Tk.8,997,351

. June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
Particulars
Taka Taka
Salary payable 3,480,976 3,480,976
Wages & Overtime payable 1,756,438 1,997,128
Electricity Bills payable 72,844 240,623
Gas Bill 2,842,636 3,581,280
M. Kamal 55,000 55,000
J. B. Trading 57,910 57,910
Chittagong Stock Exchange 385,000 385,000
Reliance Inspection - 30,577
Audit Fees Payable 80,000 80,000
Islami Commercial Insurance 86,000 86,000
Zahin Enterprise 25,000 34,106
M/s. H.S. Corporation - 21,300
Ms. Istiaque Enterprise 50,000 87,200
S.S. Trade Link 25,000 25,000
Jasim Engineering 25,000 25,000
Un- Paid Salary - 21,169
Popular Trading 55,547 55,547
Total 8,997,351 10,263,816

The above liabilities, which are unsecured, are expected to be settled in the normal course of the company's operating cycle on a regular

basis.
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18.00

19.00

20.00

21.00

22.00

Creditors for other Finance (Unsecured) : Tk. 137,629,325

June 30, 2020

Description Taka June 30,2019 Taka
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 5,444,424 5,444,424
Less : Disbursed during the year - -
Security Deposit 82,000 82,000
Interest on BDBL Term Loan 103,885,646
Interest on BASIC Bank Non-Current Loan 28,217,255
Total 137,629,325 5,526,424

Income Tax & Excise Payable : Tk. 69,555,403

Opening Balance

Add: Provision during the year
Add: Excise Duty 2018-2019
Less : Tax paid during the year

(Tax rate 15% on Textile sector as per
SRO-207 dated 30 June, 2008)

Proposed Dividend : Tk. Nil

June 30,2020 Taka

June 30, 2019

Taka
68,131,747 66,285,266
1,423,656 1,846,481
69,555,403 68,131,747

Dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the 29th Annual General Meeting and it is not treated as a liability at the

Balance Sheet date. The Board of Directors has not recommended any dividend for the financial year 2017-2018.

Deferred Tax Liability : Tk. 58,000,272
(A) Deferred tax Liabilities are arrived at as follows:

Book Value of Depreciable Fixed Assets
Less-Tax base

Taxable temporary Difference

Effective Tax Rate

Deferred Tax Liability

(B) Deferred tax expenses/(income) is arrived at as follows :

Closing Deferred Tax Liabilities
Opening Deferred Tax Liabilities

Tax Expenses : Tk. 1,276,052

Current Tax
Short Provision to earlier years

Deferred Tax Expenses (Income)

Minimum Tax @ 0.6% on Turnover has been provided during the year

June 30,2020 Taka

June 30, 2019

Taka
707,164,393 765,057,457
320,495,914 377,404,954
386,668,478 387,652,504

15% 15%
58,000,272 58,147,876
58,000,272 58,147,876
58,147,876 57,225,960
(147,604) 921,916

June 30 2020

June 30, 2019

Taka Taka
1,423,656 1,846,481
1,423,656 1,846,481
(147,604) 921,916
1,276,052 2,768,397
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26.0A The above Advances, Deposit and Pre-payments consisting of Deposits & Advance made to suppliers, statutory

27.00

authorities, banks and other institutions are considered good and are unsecured as required by the Schedule XI

of the companies Act. 1994.

No amount was due by the Directors (Including Managing Director). Managing Agents and Managers of the company
and any of them severally or jointly with other person as on 30th June, 2019

No amount was due by related parties as on 30th June, 2019.

Tax Deducted at Source : Tk. 16,052,051

. June 30, 2019 June 30,2018
Particulars Taka Taka
Balance brought forward 16,052,051 15,802,051
AIT at source during the Year - 250,000
Balance carried forward 16,052,051 16,052,051

The above amount represents tax deducted at source by the customs on import of CDBL Dividend & Spares.

28.00 Cash and Cash Equivalents : Tk.344,231

29.00

. June 30, 2019 June 30,2018
Particulars Taka Taka
Cash in Hand 134,747 134,747
Cash at Bank 209,484 392,465
Total 344,231 527,212
Cash at Bank
Name of the Bank Account no. Type of Account Branch JuneTz;(:;azow
UCBL-0662101000004239 ....4239 -
EXIM BANK, SNDA-49375 ....49375 SNDA Motijheel 47,922
EXIM BANK, FDR, 73764 ....73764 FDR -
BASIC BANK, 00391 ....391 Current Deposit Shantinagar 47,458.12
BASIC BANK, 01262 ....1262 Current Deposit Shantinagar 5,939
UCBL-10242 ....10242 Current Principal 7,610
BDBL, 0372 ...372 Current Deposit Principal 7,537
Modhumoti ...268 Current Deposit Shambhugonj 93,018
BCBL (BO) -
Total 209,484
Turnover : Tk.307,746,831
Total Total
Description 2018-2019 2017-2018
Taka Taka
A. Sales of Yarn
695033.27 Kg. 307,746,831 867,656,913
Total 307,746,831 867,656,913
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30.00

31.00

Cost of Goods Sold : Tk. 295,453,567

o 2018-2019 2017-2018
Description
Taka Taka
Raw Materials Consumed (Note 39.A) 195,325,717 531,244,703
Packing Materials Consumed (Note 39.B) 4,858,972 11,111,508
Fuel & Lubricants Consumed (Note 39.D) 2,768,871 3,225,261
Spares and Stores Consumed (Note 39.C) 21,462,058 2,098,294
224,415,619 547,679,766
Add: Opening Work-in Process 30,345,136 34,363,803
254,760,755 582,043,569
Less : Closing Work-in Process 49,953,433 30,345,136
Total Consumption 204,807,322 551,698,433
Add: Factory Overhead (Note-31) 178,772,208 222,573,899
Cost of Production 383,579,529 774,272,332
Add:Opening Stock of Finished Goods 170,288,057 170,228,600
553,867,586 944,500,932
Les:Closing Stock of Finished Goods 234,088,057 170,288,057
319,779,529 774,212,875
Add:Opening Stock of waste cotton 15,502,749 11,466,897
335,282,278 785,679,772
Less:Closing Stock of Waste Cotton 39,828,711 15,502,749
Cost of Goods Sold 295,453,567 770,177,023
Factory Overhead : Tk. 178,772,208
Description 2018-2019 2017-2018
Taka Taka
Salary & Wages 42,642,431 73,992,106
Overtime 314,011 831,708
Festival Bonus 3,432,686 7,433,522
Carriage Inward 107,676 409,400
Factory Gas and Electricity Expenses 56,176,063 56,833,867
Labour Welfare 347,162 342,338
Medical Expenses 357,363 368,813
Telephone & Telex 48,430 104,550
VAT Payment 2,404,730 3,989,950
Marine Insurance Premium 28,740 47218
Fire Insurance Premium 148,200 400,000
Rent, Rate & taxes 7,289 25,300
Lease Installment (Loan) 9,735,680 10,175,363
Misc. Expenses 15,168 512,211
Donation & Subscription 44,970 92,922
Conveyance Expenses 74,320 -
Travelling Expenses 10,515 187,526
Fuel & Lubricant for Vehicles 760,404 407,652
Entertainment 229,820 882,037
Printing & Stationery 26,937 92,489
Postage & telegram 8,077 14,410
Factory Maintenance Cost 126,725 902,404
Depreciation 61,724,810 64,528,113
Total 178,772,208 222,573,899
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31.01

32.00

32.01

32.02
33.00

The number of employees received Salaries & Wages during the period under review are as follows:

June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018

Particulars No. of Employees Taka Taka
Up to Tk. 4,000 per month 655 30,614,700 60,742,373
Above Tk. 4,000 per month 28 12,027,731 13,249,733
Total 683 42,642,431 73,992,106
Administrative Expenses : Tk. 15,024,385
Description 2018-2019 2017-2018

Taka Taka
Salary & Allowances 10,253,346 6,300,577
Festival Bonus 326,255 412,992
Conveyance Expenses 502,126
Travelling Expenses 20,500 1,335,626
Entertainment 311,532 795,230
Electricity Expenses 421,219 -
Printing & Stationery 104,844 311,377
Postage & telegram 6,427 8,184
Fuel & Lubricant for Vehicles 444,198 357,760
Utility & Others 93,687 814,152
Office Maintenance Cost 127,455 473,245
Misc. Expenses 244,034 776,890
Paper & Periodicals 6,545 7,760
Donation & Subscription 553,055 700,000
Legal Expenses 175,300 732,700
Registration, Renewal and Documentation 431,196 457,081
Board Meeting Attendence fees 5,000 5,000
AGM/EGM Expenses - 506,893
Telephone & Telex 88,369 417,331
Uniforms 129,770 91,560
Audit Fees 80,000 80,000
Depreciation 699,525 656,323
Total 15,024,385 15,240,681
The number of employees received Salaries & Wages during the period under review are as follows:

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017

Particulars No. of Employees Taka Taka
Up to Tk. 5,000 per month 16 1,862,400 988,754
Above Tk. 5,000 per month 32 8,390,946 5,311,823
Total 48 10,253,346 6,300,577
No item of the miscellaneous expenses exceeds 1% of the total revenue expenses.
Selling and Distribution Expenses : Tk. 3,748,615
Description 2018-2019 2017-2018

Taka Taka
Carriage Outward 425,410 477,458
Sales Man Salary & Expenses 3,168,875 3,522,618
Advertisement & Publicity 154,330 171,400
Total 3,748,615 4,171,476
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Financial Expenses : Tk. 163,106,309

Description 2018-2019 2017-2018
Taka Taka

Bank Charges & Commission 365,960 558,498

Interest on BDBL Term Loan 112,408,158 101,268,308

Interest on CC Loan 34,420,645 38,569,497

Interest on Exim Bank Term Loan

Interest on BASIC Bank Non-Current Loan 15,911,546 35,300,215

Total 163,106,309 175,696,518

Non-Operating Income : Tk.

Description 2018-2019 2017-2018
Taka Taka

Sale of Scraps / Waste Materials 833,716

Total - - 833,716

Provision for Income Tax: Tk. Nil

This above represents tax for the period which shall be provided on the accounting profit for the year at the presently enacted

Earnings Per Share-Disclosure Under The I1AS-33
The computation of EPS is given below:

a) Surplus for the year attributable to Shareholders Net Profit/(Loss) Tk.
b) Weighted average number of Shares outstanding during the year
¢) Earnings per Share Tk.

Net Assets Value- Per Share (NAVPS)
The computation of NAVPS is given below:
a)Total Shareholder Equity
b) Weighted average number of Shares outstanding during the year

c)Net Assets Value per Share Tk.

Net Operating Cash Flows- Per Share (NOCFPS)
The computation of NOCFPS is given below:
a)Total Cash Flow from Operating Activities

b) Weighted average number of Shares outstanding during the year
¢)Net Operating Cash Flow Per Share
APPROPRIATION DURING THE YEAR

2018-2019 2017-2018
(243,059,553)]  (100,627,679)
89,335,375 89,335,375

Q2.72) (1.13)
2018-2019 2017-2018
826,344,584 | 1,069,404,137
89,335,375 89,335,375
9.25 11.97
2018-2019 2017-2018
(40,736,781) (84,273,939)
89,335,375 89,335,375
(0.46) (0.94)

In accordance with IAS-1,"Presentation of Financial Statements", the appropriations for the year have been reflected in the
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Materials Consumed for Production Tk. 224,415,619
According to the part II of schedule XI of the Companies Act 1994, the quantities of raw materials, purchase and stock are

Description 2018-2019 2017-2018
Taka Taka
A. Raw Cotton Consumed:
Opening Stock 291,095,828 277,523,504
Add : Purchase 62,316,918 544,817,027
Less : Closing Stock (158,087,028) (291,095,828)
Sub-Total 195,325,717 531,244,703
B. Packing Materials Consumed:
Opening Stock 8,784,638 6,830,886
Add : Purchase 2,264,665 13,065,260
Less : Closing Stock (6,190,331) (8,784,638)
Sub-Total 4,858,972 11,111,508
C. Spares & Stores Consumed:
Opening Stock 146,442,452 135,131,147
Add : Purchase 8,784,181 13,409,599
Less : Closing Stock (133,764,575) (146,442,452)
Sub-Total 21,462,058 2,098,294
D. Fuel and Lubricants Consumed:
Opening Stock 259,824 455,975
Add : Purchase 2,662,218 3,029,110
Less : Closing Stock (153,171) (259,824)
Sub-Total 2,768,871 3,225,261
Grand Total (A+B+C+D) 224,415,619 547,679,766

According to the part II of schedule XI of the Companies Act 1994, the quantities of raw materials, purchase and stock should

Percentage of Materials Consumed to Total Consumption.

Materials Consumed Amount (Tk.) | % of Total

Raw Cotton (Import) - -
Raw Cotton (Local) 195,325,717 1
Packing Materials (Local) 4,858,972 0
Spears and Stores (Import) - -
Spares and Stores (Local) 21,462,058 0
Fuel and Lubricants 2,768,871 0
Total 224,415,619 1

Production of Finished Goods and Reconciliation with Stocks.

Yarn Count Dpening Stock (Kg.| Production During Total Yarn Sales

Card and Combed 01-07-2018 the Year (Kg.) (Kg.) (Kg.)
Above 30s/1 1,421,700 422,394 1,844,094 695,033
Between 20s/1 - 30s/1 -

Below 20s/1 -

Total 1,421,700 422,394 1,844,094 695,033
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Production Capacity and Utilization
As per the nature of industry, production quantity of spinning mills varies with the counts of yarn produce on the basis of

Installed Capacity (Kg.) Actual Capacity
Production (Kg.)[ Utilization (%)
1,206,750 422,394 35.00

Statement of Changes in Shareholders' Equity

The above statement showing changes in equity has been prepared and presents in accordance with the requirements
of the IAS-I (Revised 1997) adopted by ICAB as IAS-1 as in integral part of the financial statements for the period
from 1st July, 2018 to 30th June, 2019.

Payments of Remuneration/Perquisites to Directors and Officers.

During the year under review:

a) No remuneration was paid to the Managing Director of the company.
b) An amount Tk. 5,000.00 was paid to the Directors of the company as Board Meeting attendance fee.
¢) No amount of money was expensed by the company for compensating any member of the Board for special
service rendered.
d) No amount was paid to the Directors during the year for service rendered by them.
¢) No amount other than salaries, allowances and festival bonus was paid to the officers of the company.
Foreign Exchange Earnings
a) No amount of foreign exchange except above was received by the company on account of royalty, technical expertise
or professional advisory fee, interest and dividend or other income.

Foreign Currency Expenses and Remittances

a) There was no expenses incurred in foreign exchange on account of royalty, technical expert and professional
advisory fee, interest, dividend or other income etc, during the year.

b) There was no non-resident shareholders of the company and as such no remittance of dividend in foreign exchange
has been made.

Value of Import at C & F Basis
There was some value of imports in respect of raw cotton, spare & stores and machinery of the company.

Revaluation Surplus
A revaluation work of the land and land development of Tallu Spinning Mills Limited was done by S.H. Khan & Co.,

Chartered Accountants dated October 24, 2013 for 1891 decimal land at Tk. 386,040,000/, the corresponding historical cost
of which was Tk. 35,114,471/- as on June 30, 2012. Considering the value of revaluation of the land and land development or
Tk. 386,040,000/ and its corresponding cost of Tk. 35,114,471/-, a revaluation surplus of Tk. 350,925,529/- was created to

accommodate those in the Financial Statements.
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49.00 Notes to the Cash Flows:

A. Collection from Turnover & Other income:
Opening Accounts Receivable
Add: Turnover during the Year

Annual Report 2018-2019 -

692,497,327
307,746,831

Less: Closing Accounts Receivables

1,000,244,158
(666,725,776)

333,518,382

B. Payment for Cost & Expense:
Purchase
Add: Administrative Expenses
Selling and Distribution Expenses
Factory overhead

76,027,982.07
15,024,385.05
3,748,615.00
178,772,207.71

Less: Depreciation
Administrative Expenses
Factory Overhead

273,573,189.83

(699,525.36)
(61,724,810.21)

211,148,854.26

50.00 Reconciliation of Operating Cash Flows(Indirect Method):

Net profit / (Loss) after Tax

Depreciation

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes

(Increase)/ Decrease in Accounts Receivables

(Increase)/ Decrease in Closing Stock

(Increase)/ Decrease in Advances, Deposits & Pre-payments
Increase / (Decrease) Creditors for Goods & Expenses (Unsecured)
Increase / (Decrease) Creditors for Other Finance (Unsecured)
Increase / (Decrease) in Payables

Net Cash Generated From Operating Activities

(243,059,553)
62,424,336
(180,635,217)
96,476,663
40,653,377
10,200,336
(9,278,420)
1,846,481
(40,736,781)

Page 7> A



Page o0 SR

0£LO 66
10LT6D () sasuadxy asne:
o4 Jadruana o pafirey) uot
CISTHETELA TER'SRL'GS [89°€S9°R 16 LOSLI6'E00°T TSSO ELG'] 1#0]
. I amssadwod ny| a1

(=] | - o

by .

(=)

N 086t - -

1 FIT08FT CROBIE T

o] 6PT'568 §20°199°21

- opg"

N 8TL £l

et Cactt 10 |

- LBS 1S | | I

o 6 | uny | (

Q. m 6

() 9 | oo g

oc 9 19 L

—_ 055393 1L VANOSZ| 8

a s pays 1090y | L

= Z-usmopon uono) mey| o

c -UMOPOD) UONO) MEY| O

c aamgon, s

A Z | 5

0sT | t

€ % £

Ot BOB It+9 LEL | I8 18181 [4

r o] 00 : . . 2oL | !
619008 61"90°0F AEIA BI°LO°1OD 619070 dua g SIY],

e uQ Sy anjes 05y L uo sy 10) §Y uoiENjEAIY ugy sy 0N
el UAOQ] UDLILI A 1E10 ], durang duiuad)y ey (L2 A0 JUoIppy duuadgy uonydiadsagg 18
W —_— uonuasdag UOIBN|BADY W 150])

m A-21npRypg T i - - -

YOUIYSUSWALY 6] 90°0f U0 SE 5jassy paxi ] Jo ajnpagos
Ll
[
L FOS'8E€9'T
Bol'LobT 6ToF 16 sasuadxy Aoae,

S shE'sEl 5'g (v} sasuadxg aanensumnupy
— (o Jadrjuaniag
— [POST6E6R1 £66'915 621 POS'REY'T 6RE'SLEOTI LSS'R06'R1E LSSROG'RI € [ - )

| 998'1LETE TEFERTEL L91°606'1 L 8615 19°501 - 86F°C19°501 uip|ng ) (Aoiae.g) pom
M LB'E 061 PLR'E - 19°0b2 (v) s ATpung
8PL'LOE'| ' SoE'spl oro'TEs'e S80'S (v) Supping unwpy | 1
€76 250 61F'E (w] (eaomg) p 1

av BOT 098¢ 6P EPY8 - uouE|| 3

n L umopon 6
L #

c o
— L

p Ire's £

QOCGT 1 - ra
(d)) - - - . 916k | |
| GI'90°0E A BILOTTO G1'90°0€ JRIN YL BI°LOTLO
uQ) Sy anjEA uo sy ay] uo sy uQ) sy UOTJEN[BADY uQ) 5y ‘oN

o UAO(] USLILIAL 1e30., during Autuadqy ey e0 ], duuadq) uondisasag IS

y uonERaadag TS E s R—

o ESUBPENY]) 61°90°0€ U0 SE S]ISSY PIXL] JO Npayds
T T s Suiuuidg oAo |




Toyo Spinning Mills Limited ZUUTELESEEEIESTT

The Director

Toyo Spinning Mills Limited

Chuadanga (PROXY FORM)

IV e [0 P
e e e e et et ee e e eeeteeeee et eateateee et e e e re et e et eaereeaneaneaneanens being a member of Toyo Spinning Mills Limited,
' do (L=< 03V A=T o] Yo 10X 1Y/ [ 1Y/ PP
................................................................................ o)

Lo Tul = 11 LT Y I oYL a'a VA =Y a4 1V 1 g4 PN

0 S as my proxy to attend and vote for

me and on my behalf at the 30th Annual General Meeting of the company to be held on the 28th February,

2022 and at any adjournment thereof. As witness my hand this............coiii e
Lt eo e e e e e e e e e mcmsemememeneoneneannann AAY OF s 2022
Signed by the said M/ MIs. ... e
Revenue
Stamp
Signature of the proxy Signature of Witness Signature of the Member
Folio/BO No (if any)......cccoeveieniannen. Folio/BO NO .......cceennenns

Note : i) A member entitled to vote at the above meeting may appoint a proxy.

ii) The instrument of appointing a proxy shall be deposited at the Registered office of the company
not less than 48 (Forty Eight) hours before the time of holding the meeting.

Toyo Spinning Mills Limited

Chuadanga

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Please complete this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance or the Hall.

| hereby record my attendance at the 30th Annual Meeting being held on the 28th February 2022 at
Chuadanga.

Name of the member/proxy

Registered Folio/BO NO .......ccccoevviiinieiieinennnen. Signature

Ty
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